
 
 
 
 
 

Assessor’s Office 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 487-4927 
Fax:  (734) 484-5159 

www.ytown.org 

 

 
Memorandum 

 
To:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
 
Cc:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Township Clerk 

Larry Doe, Township Treasurer  
  Ypsilanti Township Board Members 
  Assessing Department 
   
Date:  February 9, 2009 
 
Re:  January Monthly Report 
 
During the month of January, Sharon Brown began sending foreclosure reports 
to YCUA on a weekly basis. The monthly name and address update was also 
sent to Washtenaw County Drain office.  
Approximately 173 deeds and related documents were entered. 
Phone calls: 100 Persons assisted at counter:  59 
 
During the month of December, Daniella Smith completed a report listing the top 
50 taxpayers with a break down of personal property taxes and real property 
taxes. All field was completed and all new construction was entered. Daniella 
continues to research returned tax bills and personal property statements for 
change of address. She has entered approximately 145 personal property 
statements.  
 Phone calls: 175 Persons assisted at the counter:  32 
 
 
During the month of January, Dawn Scheitz continued to review new construction 
from building permits and enter the data in the assessing system. All partial 
construction was documented and entered. A review of the partial construction 
from 2007 report and the 2008 building permit report generated by myself was 
reviewed to make sure that we have not missed any new construction.  
She also reviewed the 64 property divisions made during 2008 for correct legal 
descriptions, value allocation, etc. She also reviewed 13 deeds for January 
transfer to verify legal description; found one that conveyed the neighbor’s 
property and alerted the title company. Dawn has completed the Aurora land 
division after about 2 years of problems! 
Phone calls: 85 Persons assisted at counter: 28 
 



During the month of January, Brian McCleery verified and entered data from new 
building permits and documented all partial construction. A review of the partial 
construction from 2007 report and the 2008 building permit report generated by 
myself was reviewed to make sure that we have not missed any new 
construction. Brian met with a taxpayer regarding personal property statement, 
conducted telephonic MTT hearing with taxpayer. Brian ran an export of pole 
barns for discussion with the office about consistency of how they are valued. He 
also ran an export for Ordinance and some labels for Jeff Allen. 
Phone calls: 144 Persons assisted at counter: 47 
 
 
Total phone calls in December: 286 Persons assisted at counter: 88 
 
This report is not all inclusive. Many small things such as writing up a Board of 
Review petition for someone, writing up a P.R.E. denial or composing a tax 
estimate for a taxpayer are done by all staff continuously.  
 
During the month of January, Dan Dzierbicki prepared the valuation disclosure 
for RLR Investments. He entered some new class codes into the software 
system. Dan also has the responsibility of checking the deed and related 
document entry by the clerical staff. Dan downloaded building permits and 
distributed to staff appraisers for review.  Dan also attends CED bi-monthly 
meetings. He attended a meeting with Prestige with me as well.  
Dan has picked up the project of researching the square footage of commercial 
building units for our master list of all commercial addresses. 
 
During the month of January, I met with the owner of Prestige Pontiac and 
reviewed some information submitted by them concerning the value of 
automobile dealerships. I also facilitated a meeting and telephone interview of a 
rebuttal witness in the ACH/Ford tax tribunal case.  
I exported reports concerning new construction and distributed to staff appraisers 
to ensure that all new construction has been reviewed.  
I also finalized the “frequently asked questions” insert for the assessment 
notices. I also finalized the “How to read your assessment notice” put together by 
Dan. I contracted with Centron Data for the printing of assessment notices.  
I reviewed the appraisal report submitted for the LITW MTT appeal and met with 
the taxpayer & representatives as well as the three full time officials.  I have 
begun the valuation disclosure update for 2008 for Elmcrest Mobile Home Park. 
Thanks to some market research performed by Brian McCleery last summer, I 
am able to save quite a bit of time on research. 
I began the project of enhancing the report started by Brian on the master list of 
all commercial and industrial property addresses in the Township. 



BUILDING OPERATIONS 
JANUARY 2009 

 
During late December and throughout January our old Civic Center boiler was removed 
and replaced with a modern energy efficient boiler system. Our old unit was plagued 
with mechanical problems and very poor energy use efficiency. The new system 
includes 3 energy efficient boilers, new control system and circulation pumps. This 
system will provide improved heating throughout the facility, be more environmentally 
friendly and at a substantial reduction in heating costs. The new boilers will promote a 
more pleasant work and business environment for employees and residents.  I would 
like to take this opportunity to express my thanks for all who helped to make this project 
a reality. Some of our more significant items in the very busy month of January are as 
follows: 
 
 
1. Building Operations Maintenance Technicians completed 149 work orders and 

service requests during January, including routine service requests and extensive 
projects. 

 
2. Motor Pool Personnel completed 20 repairs during the month, including starter 

replacement on truck # 55, pump motors on truck # 9 and # 51, as well as 
hydraulic an plow repairs. 

 
3. Maintenance employees renovated the offices for incoming Judge Charles Pope 

and Jackie McClain. This renovation included removal of old wall paper, wall repair 
and new paint. 

 
4. Estimates were obtained for new carpet in station 8 and one small squad room. 

Instillation will occur in February. 
 
5. New directional signs were installed in the Civic Center to reflect new departmental 

changes and locations. 
 
6. Maintenance employees removed a work station from Ford Lake Park and installed 

it in the new Magistrate's office. 
 
7. Filters were replaced in the Community Center facility air conveyance system 

during the month. 
 
8. The fire suppression system at 14B Court received MIOSHA required yearly 

preventative maintenance and inspection/certification during January. 
 
9. Gas detectors used in our Confined Space program received their bi-annual 

inspection during the month, these inspection ensure safety compliance and 
employee safety when conducting confined space operations. 



Building Operations 
January 2009 
Page 2 
 
 
10. Building Operations personnel conducted one graffiti removal operation during the 

month. Our goal is to promptly remove graffiti from Township Property. 
 
11. Electrical power poles were moved in the second floor clerical area to 

accommodate new printer copiers. 
 
12. Building Operations employees completed their monthly preventative maintenance 

facility inspections in January. 
 
13. Fueling stations and storage tanks received monthly inspections during the period, 

fuel pump repairs were requires at the Community Center location and were 
completed by an authorized contractor. 

 
14. Normal year end inventory was completed in Motor Pool. 
 
15. New shelving and tables were installed at our Community Center Kids Korner day 

care room. 
 



 
 

14-B District Court 
 

  Monthly Disbursements 
 

  January 2009 
 
 

 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a State Statute is disbursed to the Washtenaw 
County Treasurer, for library purposes. 
 
 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a Township Ordinance and all Court Costs 
are disbursed to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer.  Local revenue also includes Probation 
oversight fees and Bond Forfeitures. 
 
 Revenue received as State Filing Fee, State Court Fund, Justice System Fund, Juror 
Compensation, Crime Victims Rights Fund and Dept. of Natural Resources Judgment Fee is 
forwarded to the State Treasurer. 
  
 Money received as Garnishment Proceeds, Criminal Bonds, Restitution, and Court 
Ordered Escrow are deposited in the Escrow Account of the Court. 
 
 All other revenues are transferred to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer. 
 
 
  January 2009 Disbursements: 
 
  Washtenaw County:                  $   4,223.00 
       
  State of Michigan:                     $   50,639.46 
 
  Secretary of State:                    $    1,620.00 
 
  Ypsilanti Township Treasurer:     $ 98,282.56 
 
 
      TOTAL:   $154,765.02 



14-B District Court
Revenue Report for the Month of: January 2009

General Account

Account Number
Due to Washtenaw County

(101-000-000-214.222) $4,223.00

Due to State Treasurer

Civil Filing Fee Fund  (MCL 600.171): $24,969.00
State Court Fund  (MCL 600.8371):
Justice System Fund  (MCL 600.181):

Drivers License Clearance Fees  (MCL 257.321a): $1,620.00

$1,810.00
$18,925.50

Juror Compensation Reimbursement Fund:
Civil Jury Demand Fee  (MCL 600.8371): $50.00

Crime Victims Rights Fund  (MCL 780.905): $3,264.96
Judgment Fee  (Dept. of Natural Resources): $0.00

Total: $50,639.46
Due to Secretary of State

(101-000-000-206.136) $1,620.00

Due to Ypsilanti Township

Court Costs (101-000-000-602.136): $54,972.72
Civil Fees (101-000-000-603.136): $26,134.00
Probation Fees (101-000-000-604.000): $4,003.50

Bond Forfeitures (101-000-000-605.003): $1,370.00
Interest Earned (101-000-000-605.004):
State Aid-Caseflow Assistance (101-000-602.544):
Bank Charges (Expense - 101.136.000.957.000): ($462.79)

Ordinance Fines (101-000-000-605.001): $12,201.50

$63.63
$0.00

Total: $98,282.56

Total to General Account - (101.000.000.004.136): $154,765.02
Escrow Account

(101-000-000-205.136)



Year to Date
Prior Year Comparison

Month Revenue Revenue Caseload
2008 2009 2009

January $76,654.51 $98,282.56

February $90,740.11
March $74,868.39
April $75,370.47
May $87,296.10
June $77,532.68
July $101,142.23
August $95,975.71
September $98,044.35
October $95,638.96
November $78,079.45
December $80,531.91

Standardization
Payment: $45,724.00
Year-to Date
Totals: $144,006.56
Expenditure
Budget: $1,234,930.00
Difference: ($1,090,923.44)



DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROSECUTION REPORT 
JANUARY 2009 

 
 
To: Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
From: McLain & Winters, Attorneys for the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Date:  February 3, 2008 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
 The following represents the Township Prosecuting Attorney’s report regarding domestic violence 
activity for the month of January 2009: 
 
 January 2009 Year to Date 

(2009) 
Statistics for 

2008 
Statistics Since 

10/1999 
Cases Submitted 14 14 203 2463 

Cases Authorized 6 6 63 1070 

Cases Denied  5 5 124 416 

Cases Furthered 3 3 10 165 

Cases Sent to the County 0 0 2 52 

Defendant FTA-BW 
Requested 

2 2 13 132 

Pre-Trials Held 8 8 116 1376 

Motions 1 1 8 65 

Convictions-Total 3 3 57 740 

Convictions-By Plea 2 2 53 --- 

Convictions-By Trial 1 1 4 --- 

Acquittals 0 0 2 63 

All Dismissals 4 4 44 344 

Cases Reauthorized 0 0 16 150 

Cases Not Reauthorized 4 4 28 136 

Deferrals Considered  3 3 41 352 

Conviction Rate* 100%  96% 92% 

 
* Based upon all cases taken to a conclusion 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
McLain & Winters 



 
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

  
MONTHLY REPORT 

 
JANUARY 2009 

 
 
Thirty-four personnel currently staff the fire department.  This includes: 
 1 Fire Chief (vacant)  1 Fire Marshal   3 Shift Captains 
 3 Shift Lieutenants  27 Fire Fighters (1 position vacant) 
 1 Clerk III/Staff Support 
 
97% of the fire department response personnel are licensed as emergency medical 
technicians by the State of Michigan Public Health. One (1) fire fighter has been placed 
on active duty with the United States Navy and is on leave without pay.   
 
During the month of January, the fire department responded to 387 requests for 
assistance. Of those requests, 291 were medical emergency service calls with the 
remaining 96 incidents classified as non-medical and or fire related.  
 
Other Departmental Activities:  

1. The department attended seven (7) neighborhood watch meetings 
2. The Public Fire Education department held a station tour and gave a 

fire safety demonstration for “First Step of Ypsilanti” 
3. Fire Fighters received training in the following areas: 

a. Washtenaw County Hazmat Team Training 
b. Michigan State Police Bomb Awareness Class 

  
There were no injuries and no deaths reported this month for civilians. 
 
There were no injuries and no deaths reported this month for fire fighters. 
 
This month, the total fire loss including vehicle fires is estimated at $192,000. All 
occurred at the following locations: 

   
DATE OF LOSS  ADDRESS   ESTIMATED LOSS 

1) 1/5/09  5607 Princeton  $18,000 
2) 1/5/09  5607 Princeton  Exposure  
3) 1/6/09  1495 Andrea   $1,000 
4) 1/9/09  2653 Ellsworth  $12,000 
5) 1/16/09  1779 Knowles   $80,000  
6) 1/22/09  1610 S. Outer Lane  $80,000 
7) 1/27/09  2232 Woodview  $1,000 
                             

 



Monthly Fire Report-January 2009 
Page 2 
 
Fire Marshal Summary for the month of January: 
Inspections:  

 41 general inspections 
 17 re-inspections 

 
Plan review: 

 2 fire sprinkler systems 
 1 kitchen hood system 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Cheryl Lynn-Bruestle, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 
 
Attachments:   
(1) Fire House Reporting Statistics January 2009 



Alarm Date Between {01/01/09} And {01/31/09} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

1 Fire
111 Building fire 7 1.81% $191,000  99.47%
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.26% $1,000   0.52%
150 Outside rubbish fire, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
162 Outside equipment fire 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

10 2.58% $192,000 100.00%

2 Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire)
251 Excessive heat, scorch burns with no ignition 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

1 0.26% $0 0.00%

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 49 12.66% $0   0.00%
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 23 5.94% $0   0.00%
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury189 48.84% $0   0.00%
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 10 2.58% $0   0.00%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries 15 3.88% $0   0.00%
331 Lock-in (if lock out , use 511 ) 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
381 Rescue or EMS standby 4 1.03% $0   0.00%

291 75.19% $0 0.00%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
400 Hazardous condition, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
411 Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
440 Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
444 Power line down 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
460 Accident, potential accident, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

5 1.29% $0 0.00%

5 Service Call
510 Person in distress, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
511 Lock-out 2 0.52% $0   0.00%
520 Water problem, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
522 Water or steam leak 5 1.29% $0   0.00%
531 Smoke or odor removal 4 1.03% $0   0.00%
561 Unauthorized burning 2 0.52% $0   0.00%

15 3.88% $0 0.00%

02/06/09 11:36 1Page



Alarm Date Between {01/01/09} And {01/31/09} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

6 Good Intent Call
600 Good intent call, Other 4 1.03% $0   0.00%
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 37 9.56% $0   0.00%
621 Wrong location 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
622 No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 4 1.03% $0   0.00%
650 Steam, Other gas mistaken for smoke, Other 3 0.78% $0   0.00%
652 Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
671 HazMat release investigation w/no HazMat 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

51 13.18% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
700 False alarm or false call, Other 2 0.52% $0   0.00%
710 Malicious, mischievous false call, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
715 Local alarm system, malicious false alarm 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
730 System malfunction, Other 2 0.52% $0   0.00%
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 3 0.78% $0   0.00%
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional1 0.26% $0   0.00%
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
746 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 2 0.52% $0   0.00%

14 3.62% $0 0.00%

Total Incident Count: 387 Total Est Loss: $192,000

02/06/09 11:36 2Page



GREEN OAKS GOLF COURSE 
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
REPORT FOR JANUARY, 2009 

 
 

All tee markers were sanded, primed and repainted. 
 
All posts forbidding golf carts close to the greens were cleaned, primed 
and stained. 
 
All trash cans were cleaned and repainted. 
 
All remaining fairway markers were painted. 
 
Reels on equipment were sharpened and bearings replaced. 
 
Rollers for reels were taken apart, checked, greased and reset. 
 
A seal on greens mower engine was taken apart and replaced. 
 
Traction drive on greens mower was repaired and reset. 
 
The spindle drive on center deck of mower was repaired and cleaned. 
 
The greens aerator v-belt for coring drive was replaced. 
 
The month of January also brought in record amounts of snow. 
 
Thank you, 
Tim Smith 



 

  

 
 

Community Development
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 485-3943 
Fax:  (734) 484-5151 

www.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us 

Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 

Clerk 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

Treasurer 
Larry J. Doe 

Trustees 
Jean Hall Currie 

Stan Eldridge 
Mike Martin 
Dee Sizemore 

 
 
 
TO:  The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board Members 
 
FROM:  Mark Giffin – Ordinance Administrator 

 
RE:  Monthly Report for January 2009  

 

 
 
 
 
ACTIVITIES:     #  YTD  2008 TD 
  
 
NEW COMPLAINTS     194  194  162 

 
INSPECTIONS      357  357  271 
 
NOTICE OF VIOLATIONS ISSUED 29   29  26 
 
COMPLAINTS CLOSED    156   156  145 
     
VEHICLES TAGGED 48 HOURS  37   37            39 
 
MUNICIPAL CIVIL INFRACTION 
TICKETS ISSUED     35   35    02 
 
PEDDLER PERMITS ISSUED  0    0     0 
 

 
 
 
 



 
ADDITIONAL STATISTICAL INFORMATION: 

     
HOURS OF COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION…..  209.50 
 
HOURS OF OFFICE FOLLOW-UP ………….…  118.75 
 
HOURS OF COURT,TRAINING/MEETINGS …    12.50 
 
TOTAL OF HOURS WORKED …………………   340.75 
 
TOTAL OF MILES DRIVEN ……………………..   1324 
 
DAYS WORKED 
Mark Giffin ………………………………………. 19 
Bill Elling ………………………………………… 22 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
February 11, 2009 
 
 
To: Township Board  
 
From: David A. Nicholson, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Re: Planning Division (DCS) February, 2009 report 
 
 
Please be advised as follows regarding recent activities in the Planning Department.  
 
Planning Commission Activity 
The Commission elected new officers at the first meeting of the year in January, 2009. 
Those officers are: 
 
Nathan Reed – Chair  
 
John Reiser – Vice Chair 
 
Sally Richie – Secretary  
 
Problem Projects 
We continue to assist the Township Attorney and other Township staff with regard to 
problem projects.  
 
Plans in Process 
Please see the attached list of site plans and development are presently in the review and 
development process. 
 
Please contact me at my office (734-544-3650) or on my cell phone (734-368-4175) if 
you have any questions regarding this report. 

  

Community Standards 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 485-3943 
Fax:  (734) 484-5151 

www.ytown.org 



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
       
Project Type Location Status Developer Site Planner Filing Date 
Aspen Ridge – 
PD 

Single 
Family 
Attached-
condo 
Multi-family, 
Commercial 

Section 30 – 165 
units 
-97 Single Family 
-68 Duplex 
-2 acres of 
commercial 
South-east corner of 
Textile and Munger 
52.21 acres 

Under 
Construction 
 
Lombardo 
Homes taking 
control of project 
as of 9-1-08 

Centex Homes 
100 Galleria 
Officentre 
Ste 200 
Southfield, MI  
48034 
248-233-8300 

$170 - $350k  

       
Brookview Park Planned 

Development 
Single 
Family 

Section 33 – 91 units 
Southeast corner of 
Merritt and 
Whittaker 
75.4 acres 

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Approved 
(3/27/07) 
 
Project on Hold 

Diversified 
Properties Grp 
28800 Orchard Lk 
Rd 
Farmington Hills,  
48334 

Atwell-Hicks Inc 
7927 Nemco Way 
Suite 100 
Brighton, MI  
48116 
810-225-6000 
Kevin Stanley 

2/1/06 

       
Creekside Farms 
Subdivision 

Single 
Family 
Planned 
Development 

Section 27 – 92 lots 
North side of Merritt 
Rd, east of Whittaker 
49.33 acres 
$280 - $340k 

Awaiting 
Preconstruction 
Meeting 

Pulte Homes of 
Michigan 
26622 Woodward 
Ave 
Suite 110 
Royal Oak, MI  
48067 
248-414-2038 

Atwell-Hicks Inc 
500 Avis Dr. 
# 100 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48108 
734-994-4000 

7/19/00 

       
Creekside 
Village East 

Single 
Family 

Section 26 – 250 lots 
East side of Tuttle 
Hill and Merritt Rd 
93.47 acres 

Under 
Construction 

Pulte Homes of 
Michigan 
26622 Woodward 
Ave 

Atwell-Hicks Inc 
500 Avis Dr. 
# 100 
Ann Arbor, MI  

12/15/99 



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 

$190 - $250k Suite 110 
Royal Oak, MI  
48067 
248-546-2300 

48108 
734-994-4000 

       
Creekside 
Village South 

Planned 
Development 
Single 
Family 

Section 34 – 181 lots 
West side of Tuttle 
Hill, 
South of Martz 
62.26 acres 
$170 - $250k 

Under 
Construction 

Pulte Homes of 
Michigan 
26622 Woodward 
Ave 
Suite 110 
Royal Oak, MI  
48067 
248-546-2300 

$170 - $250k 5/6/98 

       
       
Creekside 
Village West 

Single 
Family 

Section 27 – 197 lots 
West side of Tuttle 
Hill, 
North of Merritt 
148.21 acres 
 

Under 
Construction 

Pulte Homes of 
Michigan 
26622 Woodward 
Ave 
Suite 110 
Royal Oak, MI  
48067 
248-546-2300 

$280 - $400k  

       
Crystal Ponds Single 

Family 
Attached & 
Detached 
condos 
 

Section 25 – 90 units 
East side of Bunton 
south of Textile 
49.37 acres 

Under 
Construction 

New Dimensions 
3220 Coolidge 
Berkley, MI  48072 
248-584-3340 
Bob George 

$75 - $190  

       
Lakewood Single Section 26 – 415 Under Westminster & Abby Atwell-Hicks Inc 3/3/00 



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
Farms 
Mixed Use – PD 

Family 
Site condo 
Duplex 
condo 
Attached- 
condo 

units 
Phase I – 72 attached 
condominium units 
Phase II – 343 site 
and duplex condos 
East side of Tuttle 
Hill 
Btwn Textile & 
Merritt 
254 acres 
$170 - $300+k 

Construction 
 
Infrastructure 
has been 
installed though 
no homes are 
scheduled to be 
constructed at 
this time. 

30100 Telegraph Rd 
Suite 100 
Bingham Farms, MI 
48025 
248-203-2121 

500 Avis Dr.# 100 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48108 
734-994-4000 
Jason Van Ryn 

       
Latter Rain 
Ministries 

Church  
-15,026 sqft 
Parsonage 
Senior 
Housing 
-55 units 
Attached 
Condos 
-7 units 

Section 7 
Northeast corner of 
Hewitt Rd and 
Ellsworth 
11.02 acres  

Senior Housing 
-Complete 
 
Attached Condos 
-On Hold 

Latter Rain Ministries 
COGIC, Inc. 
1616 Foley 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Melvin T. Walls – 
Pastor 

N/A  

       
Paint Creek Park 
– Condos 
(Hunters Ridge) 
 

PD – 
Duplex 
Condos 

Section 20 – 50 units Project on Hold Stonegate Associates 
2585 Sunnyknowl 
Berkley, MI  48072 
Joseph Check 

Wolverine 
Engineering 
312 North Street 
Mason, MI  48854 
517-676-9200 

3/30/98 

       
Paint Creek 
Crossing – 
Residential 

PD – Single & 
Multi-family 
Residential 

Section 20 – 235 
units 
113 acres 

Project on Hold Stonegate Associates 
2585 Sunnyknowl 
Berkley, MI  48072 
Joseph Check 

Wolverine 
Engineering 
312 North Street 
Mason, MI  48854 
517-676-9200 

3/30/98 



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
       
Pine View Golf 
Estates North III 

Single Family Section 20 – 35 
units 
North side of 
Textile, west of 
Stony Creek 

Phase III 
-Under 
Construction 
one lot remains 

Barizzini & Rose 
LLC 
7743 Huron River 
Dr. 
Dexter, MI  48130 
734-426-0500 

$300 - $400k  

       
Rivergrove 
Village 

Single Family 
Attached – 
condo 

Section 24 – 175 
units 
Intersection of 
Grove & 
Bridge Rd 
38.06 acres 
 

Under 
Construction 

BRG Development 
17117 W. Nine Mile 
Suite 1100 
Southfield, MI  
48075 
734-669-2959 

$170-$220k  

       
Share Commons Attached 

Condominiums  
Section 14 – 50 
units 
Share Street east of 
Harris and south of  
I-94 
8.54 acres 

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Pending 
(3/28/08) 
Detailed 
Engineering 
-Pending 

Hall’s Mortgage Inc 
24655 Southfield Rd 
Southfield, MI  
48075 
248-559-3480 
248-559-3577 fax 
Ralph Hall 

Atwell Hicks 
500 Avis Drive, 
Ste 100 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48108 
734-994-4000 
734-994-1599 fax 
Tom Covert 

9/26/06 

       
Tremont Park  
Phase II 

Single Family Section 35 – 188 
units 
North side of Martz, 
west of Bunton 

Phase II – 91 
units 
-Under 
Construction 

Tremont Park 
Associates 
27774 Franklin Rd 
Southfield, MI  
48034 
248-594-0951 
Jeff Brown 

$240 - $320k  

       



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
West Grove Site 
Condos 

Single-Family 
Site Condo 

Section 24 – 40 
units 
Northwest corner of 
Grove and Ide 
14.2 acres 

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Approved 
(5/17/05) 
-Extension 
(2/27/07) 
Detailed 
Engineering 
-Pending (2/3/07) 

Grove Road, LLC 
Sherman Farber 
Development 
5994 Red Coat Lane 
West Bloomfield, 
48322 
248-855-6065 

Atwell-Hicks Inc 
500 Avis Dr. 
Suite 100 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48108 
Mark Pascoe 
734-994-4000 

8/26/04 

       
Whispering 
Meadows II 

Planned 
Development 
-Single 
Family 

Section 27 – 217 
units 
West side of Tuttle 
Hill, south of Textile 

Phase II – 102 
units 
-Under 
Construction  

RDK Homes 
1409 Plymouth Rd 
Suite 280 
Plymouth, MI  48170 
734-495-3017 
Robert Kime 

$160 - $270k  

       
Burning Bush 
Church Addition 

13,465 sqft 
addition to 
existing 
facilty 

Section 11 –  
2069 Tyler Road 
North side of Tyler 
west of Desoto 

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Approved 
(6/24/08) 
Detailed 
Engineering 
-Approved 
(11/12/08) 

Burning Bush Church 
Of God in Christ 
2069 Tyler Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 
Don Shelby Jr. 

The Shirkey 
Company 
1340 Market 
Avenue 
Canton, OH  44714 
330-455-2672 

11/6/07 

       
Chinese Buffet 8,768 sqft 

addition 
onto existing 
5,000 sqft 
facility 

Section 6 –  
2906 Washtenaw 
South side of 
Washtenaw east of 
Golfside 

Under 
Construction 

Mr. Xing Shou 
Wang, Xing-Long 
Property, LLC, 2867 
Washtenaw Ave., 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 

E.P. Kabiske & 
Assoc 
1430 E. Michigan 
Ave 
Ypsilanti, MI  
48198 
734-481-1322 

11/15/06 



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
       
Eby-Brown 17,000 sqft 

cold storage 
addition 

Section 2 
2085 E. Michigan 
Ave 
South side of E. 
Michigan east of 
Ford Blvd 
19.9 acre site 

Under 
Construction 

Eby Brown Company 
280 Shuman Street 
Naperville, IL  60566 

Washtenaw 
Engineering 
3250 West Liberty 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48103 
 

7/11/08 

       
First Free Will 
Baptist Church 

6,702 sqft 
addition to 
existing 
facility 

Section 3 –  
1244 Holmes Rd 
South side of Holmes 
west of Ford Blvd 

Project on Hold First Free Will 
Baptist 
1244 Holmes Rd 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 

Davenport Brothers 
301 Industrial Pk 
Dr. 
Belleville, MI  
48111 
734-697-2994 

8/17/04 

       
Grace 
Fellowship 
Church 

Church – 
Place of 
worship 
12,190 sqft 

Section 1 –  
Mott Rd East of 
Ridge Rd. 
16.0 acres 

Revised site plans  
-Approved 
(2/26/08) 
 
Awaiting PreCon 

Grace Fellowship 
2754 Eastlawn 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Pastor Powell 
734-994-4590 

Engineering 
Technologies Corp. 
2455 S. Industrial 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48104 
734-794-0052 

2/3/03 

       
Hidaya Muslim 
Community 
Assoc. 

85,000 sqft 
place of 
worship and 
community 
center  
(3-Phases) 

Section 07 – North 
side of Ellsworth east 
of Golfside 
7.02 acres 

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Public Hearing 
(7/24/07) 
Recommended for 
denial by PC 
Project on Hold 
 

Hidaya Muslim 
Community 
Associates 
5291 Falling Leaf Dr 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48109 
Imran Molon 

G.A.V. & 
Associates 
31471 
Northwestern Hwy 
Farmington Hills,  
48334 
248-985-9101 
Ghassan Abdelnour 

12/7/05 

       



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
 
Project Type Location Status Developer Site Planner Filing Date 
Nonresidential       
       
Lunch & Liquor 
Party Store 

2,895 sqft 
retail facility 

Section 11 – 1424 
Ecorse 
s/w corner of 
Ecorse and 
Greenlawn 

Under 
Construction 

  10/12/05 

       
MichCon Natural gas 

compressor 
station 

Section 1 –  
3020 E. Michigan 
Avenue 
South side of 
Michigan west of 
Rawsonville 

Under 
Construction 

DTE Energy 
2000 Second Avenue 
Detroit, MI  48226 

Basic Systems Inc. 
10901 Clay Pike 
Rd 
Derwent, OH  
47433 

8/5/08 

       
Mouhajer 
Garage 

2,146 sqft 
automobile 
repair 
facility 

Section 18 
3150 W. Michigan 
Ave 
North side of W. 
Michigan west of 
I94 

Under 
Construction 

Petro Limited Group 
LLC 
3150 W. Michigan Ave. 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Mike Mouhajer 

Maher Abbasi 
Abbasi 
Engineering 
6715 Greenview 
Street 
Detroit, MI  48228 
 

9/28/07 

       
Pita Pita 484 sqft  

three season 
sunroom 

Section 6  
2469 Washtenaw 
Ave. 
South side of 
Washtenaw west of 
Hewitt 

Pending Bldg 
Review 

  9/3/08 

       
Prestige 6,923 sqft Section 17 Project Jackson Land Holding, Alpine 7/2/08 



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
Automotive automobile 

showroom 
and repair 
facility 

444 James L. Hart 
North side of James 
L. Hart west of 
Huron 
7.57 acre site 

approved and on 
hold 

20200 E. 9 Mile Road, 
St. Clair Shores, MI 
48080 

Engineering 
46892 West Road, 
Suite 109 
Novi, MI  48377 

       
Speedway Gas 
Station 

Demolish 
and 
reconstruct 
3,936 sqft 
gas station  

Section 10  
1395 E. Michigan 
Northwest corner of 
East Michigan and 
Harris 
0.77 acre site  

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Pending 
(11/27/07) 
 

Speedway/SuperAmerica 
500 Speedway Dr 
Springfield, OH  45501 
937-864-3000 

Marathon Ashland 
Petroleum LLC 
539 S. Main St 
Findlay, OH  
45840 
419-422-2121 

11/27/07 

       
Walgreens/KC 
Daycare 

13,580 sqft 
pharmacy 
and 4,600 
sqft daycare 
facility 

Section 21 
Near the intersection 
of Stony Creek and 
Whittaker Road 
5.82 acre site 

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Approved 
(1/27/09) 
Detailed 
Engineering 
-Pending 

WG Ypsilanti, LLC 
255 E. Brown Street, 
Suite 105 
Birmingham, MI  
48009 
 

Wade Trim 
3933 Monitor Road 
Bay City, MI  
48707 

7/10/08 

       
Ypsilanti Area 
Credit Union 

1,584 sqft 
branch 
building 

Section 21 
Located on the west 
side of Whittaker 
south of  
S. Huron River Drive 
2.0 acres 

Preliminary Site 
Plan 
-Approved 
(12/23/08) 
Detailed 
Engineering 
-Pending 

Tracker Properties 
LLC 
33533 W. Twelve 
Mile 
Farmington Hills,  
48331 
2248-324-9315 
Earl McHugh 

Washtenaw 
Engineering 
3250 W. Liberty 
Ann Arbor, MI  
48106 
734-761-8800 

9/17/08 



Planning Division (DCS) Monthly Report 
February, 2009 
 
 
       
Zeer Security 1,644 sqft 

addition to 
existing 
retail 
building 

Section 6 –  
2997 Washtenaw 
Ave 
s/e corner of 
Washtenaw and 
Golfside 

Awaiting Bldg 
permit review 

Eddie Zeer 
23999 W. 10 Mile 
Southfield,  48034 
248-304-1900 

Engineering 
Services Inc 
32300 Schoolcraft 
Livonia, MI 48150 
734-525-7330 

1/4/08 

       
 



 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road  Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732  OFFICE  (734) 971-8400  FAX  (734) 973-4624  EMAIL  sheriff@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF UNDERSHERIFF 

 
 

 

February 9, 2009 
 
 
 
 
Supervisor Brenda Stumbo 
Ypsilanti Township  
7200 Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
 
Dear Ms. Stumbo 
 
Attached you will find the January 2009 Ypsilanti Township Police Services Report.  Please 
accept this at your board meeting scheduled for February 17, 2009.  Please contact me with any 
questions or concerns.  
 
If you require additional information please contact me and I will provide you with the necessary 
information.  
 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

 
Jim Anuszkiewicz 
Lieutenant 

 
 



Area: 

Date Range:

Washtenaw County Sheriff's Activity Log
Activity Log Area Summary Report

02/09/2009  3:21:52PM

20  -  Ypsilanti Twp.

1/1/2009  -  1/31/2009

CSO/ACO/Support Staff Log

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 126  6005

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 6  165

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 32  1190

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 104  4195

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 52  2455

Total Training:  for a total of  minutes 1  75

 14,625 341Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   243= hours minutes 45

Deputy Log

 666Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   11315 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 1093  28085

Total Briefing:  for a total of  minutes 681  13254

Total Court (Regular Time):  for a total of  minutes 36  3800

Total Court (Overtime):  for a total of  minutes 37  4735

Total Community Relations:  for a total of  minutes 131  4045

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 800  45591

Total Out of Service:  for a total of  minutes 214  445

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 1630  43260

Total Special Detail:  for a total of  minutes 63  6680

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 1085  26010

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 161  9380

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 1773  73714

Total Training:  for a total of  minutes 20  1975

Total Other:  for a total of  minutes 555 16

Total Service Request Assist:  for a total of  minutes 361  11211

Total Property Check:  for a total of  minutes 223  3860

Total Court Off-Duty:  for a total of  minutes 47  6540

 304,360 9,690Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   5072= hours minutes 40

Detective Log

 4Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   50 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 6  315

Total Briefing:  for a total of  minutes 3  60

Total Court (Regular Time):  for a total of  minutes 8  1695

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 106  13890

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 4  60

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 2  40

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 2  70

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 8  1185

Total Other:  for a total of  minutes 105 2

Total Service Request Assist:  for a total of  minutes 1  30

Total Property Check:  for a total of  minutes 8  90

p_al_Log_Type_Summary.rpt Page 1 of 3  3:21:52PM2/9/2009



 17,620 155Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   293= hours minutes 40

General Fund Patrol

 16Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   325 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 4  65

Total Briefing:  for a total of  minutes 6  90

Total Community Relations:  for a total of  minutes 1  5

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 12  550

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 107  2115

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 23  525

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 3  115

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 8  595

Total Training:  for a total of  minutes 1  15

Total Other:  for a total of  minutes 60 2

Total Service Request Assist:  for a total of  minutes 13  480

 5,000 198Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   83= hours minutes 20

Secondary Road Patrol Log

 12Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   210 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 4  170

Total Court (Regular Time):  for a total of  minutes 4  165

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 12  780

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 1  15

Total Special Detail:  for a total of  minutes 2  45

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 34  510

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 3  190

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 28  1470

Total Service Request Assist:  for a total of  minutes 3  90

 3,675 104Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   61= hours minutes 15

Supervisor Log

 4Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   80 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 584  38180

Total Briefing:  for a total of  minutes 121  2055

Total Community Relations:  for a total of  minutes 38  610

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 22  1150

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 218  5990

Total Special Detail:  for a total of  minutes 10  650

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 120  2225

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 67  1750

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 16  1130

Total Training:  for a total of  minutes 2  315

Total Other:  for a total of  minutes 60 1

Total Service Request Assist:  for a total of  minutes 34  1040

Total Property Check:  for a total of  minutes 8  155

Total Court Off-Duty:  for a total of  minutes 7  540

 58,035 1,339Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   967= hours minutes 15

p_al_Log_Type_Summary.rpt Page 2 of 3  3:21:52PM2/9/2009



 11,827  403,315Combined Total Records,  Minutes and equaivalent Hours:   6721  55hours minutes=

p_al_Log_Type_Summary.rpt Page 3 of 3  3:21:52PM2/9/2009



* * * D R A F T * * *
Area: 

Date Range:

Washtenaw County Sheriff's Activity Log
Activity Log Area Summary - Deputy Join Report

02/09/2009  3:27:09PM

20 - Ypsilanti Twp.

1/1/2009  -  1/31/2009

Deputy Log

 240 Logs  

 322Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   5095 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 272  5075

Total Briefing:  for a total of  minutes 171  3545

Total Court (Regular Time):  for a total of  minutes 3  260

Total Court (Overtime):  for a total of  minutes 1  195

Total Community Relations:  for a total of  minutes 23  480

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 190  7735

Total Out of Service:  for a total of  minutes 39  60

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 619  15265

Total Special Detail:  for a total of  minutes 31  3350

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 442  9310

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 34  1055

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 512  16765

Total Training:  for a total of  minutes 2  100

Total Other:  for a total of  minutes 30 3

Total Service Request Assist:  for a total of  minutes 124  3215

Total Property Check:  for a total of  minutes 88  1360

Total Court Off-Duty:  for a total of  minutes 2  300

 75,725 3,278Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   1262= hours minutes 5

General Fund Patrol

 7 Logs  

 1Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   10 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 1  30

Total Follow-Up:  for a total of  minutes 3  85

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 13  255

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 1  20

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 1  15

Total Service Request Assist:  for a total of  minutes 5  155

 570 25Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   9= hours minutes 30

Secondary Road Patrol Log

 3 Logs  

 5Total Traffic Stop:  for a total of   65 minutes

Total Administrative Duty:  for a total of  minutes 1  55

Total Proactive Patrol:  for a total of  minutes 1  15

Total Selective Enforcement:  for a total of  minutes 6  75

Total Self-Initiated Activity:  for a total of  minutes 1  5

Total Service Requests:  for a total of  minutes 2  90

 305 16Total Records,  Minutes and equivalent Hours:   5= hours minutes 5

p_al_Log_Type_Summary_Join.rpt Page 1 of 2  3:27:09PM2/9/2009



 3,319  76,600Combined Total Records,  Minutes and equaivalent Hours:   1276  40hours minutes=

 250 Total Logs

p_al_Log_Type_Summary_Join.rpt Page 2 of 2  3:27:09PM2/9/2009



Report Description

Timeframe :
Location :

User Comments :

Incident Summary Report

N/A

From 2009-01-01 00:00:00 To 2009-01-31 23:59:00
MunicipalArea | YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

Offense Class Code Offense Class Description Count
 210 CSC I - PENETRATION - P/V - FORCE  4

 215 CSC I - SODOMY - O/A - FORCE  1

 226 CSC IV - FONDLING - FORCE  1

 310 ROBBERY WITH FIREARM  2

 410 ASSAULT WITH A FIREARM  3

 430 ASSAULT - OTHER WEAPON  7

 450 ASSAULT AND BATTERY  29

 460 INTIMIDATION / THREAT  13

 499 ASSAULT (ALL OTHER)  2

 510 BURGLARY - HOME INVASION - 1ST DEGREE  23

 512 BURGLARY - FORCE - NON-RESIDENTIAL  4

 521 BURGLARY - NO FORCE - RESIDENTIAL  4

 633 RETAIL FRAUD I - SHOPLIFTING OVER $1000 - FELONY  1

 634 RETAIL FRAUD II - SHOPLIFTING UNDER $1000 - MISDEM  10

 636 RETAIL FRAUD III MISD  4

 643 LARCENY FROM VEHICLE - B&E (INCLUDES W/DAMAGE - 750.356 A-B)  12

 653 OF VEHICLE PARTS / ACCESSORIES - B&E  3

 670 IN A BUILDING  4

 699 LARCENY - ALL OTHER  23

 710 AUTOMOBILE (CAR) THEFT  9

 799 ALL OTHER VEHICLE  1

 810 ARSON  1

 1115 FRAUD - CREDIT CARD / AUTO TELLER MACHINE- (ATM) / FINANCIAL TRANS. DEVICE USE  2

 1122 LARCENY BY CONVERSION  1

 1199 ALL OTHER  20

 1210 EMBEZZLEMENT  2

 1330 STOLEN PROPERTY - RECEIVING / CONCEALING / POSSESSING  5

 1340 STOLEN AUTO - REPORTED BY OTHER JURIS  3

 1410 MDOP - MALICIOUS DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY  19

 1506 CONCEALED WEAPONS - ALL OTHER  1

 1610 PROSTITUTION AND VICE  2

 1775 PORNOGRAPHY - OBSCENE MATERIAL  1

 1816 COCAINE - USE / POSSESS  2

 1820 MARIJUANA - SALE / MANUFACTURE  1

 1821 MARIJUANA - USE / POSSESS  1

 1853 OTHER NARCOTIC - USE / POSSESS  6

 1872 FRAUDULENT PROCUREMENT / PRESCRIPTION - NARCOTIC  2

 1875 NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT / DEVICE VIOLATIONS  3

 2022 CRUELTY / NEGLECT - OTHER  1

 2115 OUI LIQUOR - includes per se  3

 2205 ADULT - POSSESS / TRANSPORT OPEN CONTAINER / OPEN INTOX IN MOTOR VEH  3

 2315 CONTEMPT OF COURT - BENCH WARRANT - FTCJ  4

 2395 ESCAPE / FLIGHT - OTHER  1

Page 1 of 42/9/09



Report Description

Timeframe :
Location :

User Comments :

Incident Summary Report

N/A

From 2009-01-01 00:00:00 To 2009-01-31 23:59:00
MunicipalArea | YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

Offense Class Code Offense Class Description Count
 2397 OBSTRUCT JUSTICE - OTHER  1

 2399 OBSTRUCT POLICE - OTHER  4

 2405 DISORDERLY CONDUCT  62

 2440 PUBLIC NUISANCE  29

 2443 OBSCENE TELEPHONE CALLS  11

 2454 CURFEW VIOLATION  1

 2456 LOITERING - 17 YEARS AND OLDER  3

 2499 DISORDERLY - ALL OTHER  1

 2535 UNLAWFUL ENTRY - NO INTENT  1

 2560 TRESPASS  3

 2614 INVASION OF PRIVACY - OTHER  1

 2691 CONSERVATION LAWS  8

 2693 HEALTH/SAFETY VIOLATIONS  1

 2697 ANIMAL CRUELTY 4 YR FEL  1

 2780 LOCAL ORDINANCES - OPEN FOR ANY  1

 2784 LOCAL ORDINANCES - OPEN FOR ANY  1

 2820 RUNAWAY  10

 2821 RECOVERED RUNAWAY  2

 2822 LOST / MISSING JUVENILE  1

 2825 INCORRIGIBILITY  1

 2840 MALICIOUS MISCHIEF  1

 2899 ALL OTHER  17

 2922 FAIL TO STOP AND I.D. ACCIDENT  2

 2923 FAIL TO REPORT ACCIDENT  1

 2925 RECKLESS DRIVING  1

 2931 OPS LICENSE SUSPENDED / REVOKED  17

 2999 ALL OTHER  1

 3010 FELONY  4

 3020 MISDEMEANOR  23

 3040 FELONY - O/JURIS  3

 3050 MISDEMEANOR - O/JURIS  13

 3070 CIVIL / FRIEND OF THE COURT  1

 3101 ACC, SINGLE MOTOR VEH  1

 3104 ACC, ANGLE  1

 3105 ACC, REAR END  1

 3113 ACC, INJURY TYPE B  2

 3114 ACC, INJURY TYPE C  5

 3145 TRAFFIC CRASHES - PROPERTY DAMAGE  101

 3148 MOTOR VEHICLE - ANIMAL  1

 3150 PROPERTY DAMAGE - H & R  26

 3158 PEDESTRIAN - PERSONAL INJURY  1

 3170 PRIVATE PROPERTY  3

 3175 PRIVATE PROPERTY - H & R  3

Page 2 of 42/9/09



Report Description

Timeframe :
Location :

User Comments :

Incident Summary Report

N/A

From 2009-01-01 00:00:00 To 2009-01-31 23:59:00
MunicipalArea | YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

Offense Class Code Offense Class Description Count
 3199 ACCIDENTS (ALL OTHER)  1

 3208 DEATH INVESTIGATION - CAUSE UNKNOWN  2

 3250 MENTAL  14

 3299 WELFARE CHECK  1

 3309 LIQUOR INSPECTION  2

 3310 FAMILY TROUBLE  76

 3312 NEIGHBORHOOD TROUBLE  10

 3314 MISSING PERSONS  4

 3316 LOST PROPERTY  6

 3318 FOUND PROPERTY  3

 3324 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES  244

 3326 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLES  1

 3328 SUSPICIOUS PERSONS  9

 3330 ASSIST OTHER LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY  18

 3331 ASSIST MEDICAL  38

 3333 ASSIST MOTORIST  21

 3336 ASSIST CITIZEN  64

 3338 ARREST ASSIST - OTHER AGENCY  3

 3344 RECOVERED STOLEN VEHICLE - OTHER JURISDICTION  2

 3345 ACCIDENTAL PROPERTY DAMAGE  3

 3351 CIVIL - LANDLORD / TENANT  27

 3354 CIVIL - FAIL TO RETURN BORROWED VEHICLE  1

 3355 CIVIL MATTER - OTHER  33

 3399 ALL OTHER  1

 3501 OPEN GENERIC  54

 3505 OPEN GENERIC  3

 3509 OPEN GENERIC  17

 3511 OPEN GENERIC  2

 3523 OPEN GENERIC  7

 3599 OPEN GENERIC  14

 3702 ROAD HAZARD  8

 3704 ABANDONED AUTO  43

 3706 VEHICLE IMPOUND  2

 3708 PRIVATE IMPOUND  38

 3732 TRAFFIC MISCELLANEOUS B COMPLAINT  20

 3799 TRAFFIC MISC  1

 3804 ANIMAL COMPLAINT  17

 3808 ANIMAL BITE / SCRATCH  2

 3812 ANIMAL PICK-UP - ALIVE  7

 3902 BURGLARY ALARM  100

 3904 OPEN  3

 3906 ROBBERY  1

 3907 PANIC ALARM  4

Page 3 of 42/9/09



Report Description

Timeframe :
Location :

User Comments :

Incident Summary Report

N/A

From 2009-01-01 00:00:00 To 2009-01-31 23:59:00
MunicipalArea | YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

Offense Class Code Offense Class Description Count
 3999 ALARMS ALL OTHER  2

 4307 DROVE WITH EXPIRED OPERATORS LICENSE  1

Grand Total:  1,546

Page 4 of 42/9/09



Number of Incidents by Day

N/A

Report Description

Location :
User Comments :

Timeframe : From 2009-01-01 00:00:00 To 2009-01-31 23:59:00
MunicipalArea | YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

Day of Week Count

Sunday  191
Monday  190
Tuesday  209
Wednesday  184
Thursday  253
Friday  273
Saturday  246

Total  1,546

2/9/09



Number of Incidents by Time
Report Description

Location :
User Comments :

Timeframe : From 2009-01-01 00:00:00 To 2009-01-31 23:59:00

N/A
MunicipalArea | YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

Hour of Day Count

 0:00  65
 1:00  58
 2:00  46
 3:00  37
 4:00  23
 5:00  21
 6:00  18
 7:00  28
 8:00  38
 9:00  53

 10:00  63
 11:00  85
 12:00  80
 13:00  84
 14:00  88
 15:00  96
 16:00  89
 17:00  92
 18:00  93
 19:00  90
 20:00  66
 21:00  68
 22:00  83
 23:00  82

Total  1,546

2/9/2009



 
 
 
 
 

Residential Services 
Department 

 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-0073 

Fax:  (734) 544-3501 
www.ytown.org 

 

 
 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 
January / February 2009 

 
The township staff members from the Parks & Grounds 
Department and the Environmental Services Department have 
been extremely busy keeping up with the snow this season. 
 
As a trial for this season I moved the scheduled work time up 1 
hour from 7:00am to 6:00am.  This has allowed our staff enough 
time to clear the snow and ice from around the township buildings 
prior to them being opened for the public. 
 
The trucks utilized for the chipping operation have been scheduled 
for their annual safety inspections. 
 
We have also completed major servicing of our chippers which 
included oil and oil filter changes and all of the cutting knives.  This 
year we have also replaced the hydraulic fluids and filters. 
 
The servicing of the mowing equipment for the Parks & Grounds is 
also nearing completion as the new season rapidly approaches. 
 
In addition to the trees that were added to the Community Center 
Complex last fall we were also able to add 6 new 4”-6” caliper 
trees near the play ground at Ford Heritage Park.  These trees will 
greatly enhance the experience had on Play Ground Adventures 
as the trees will offer much needed shade to the area. 

http://www.ytown.org/


 
 
 
 
 

Residential Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0073 
Fax:  (734) 544-3501 

www.ytown.org 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From: Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director 
 
Date: February 9, 2009 
 
Subject: January/February Monthly Report-Residential Services  
 
 
I attended another firework hosted by Phil Stachelewitz.  We are 
making good progress for the event. 
 
I met with Michael Saranen numerous times with regard to our 
response to F.E.R.C., and the way the dam failure modes were 
classified.  The letter has been sent after much discussion over the 
appropriate language.  
 
I attended the Judge Pope event that was held in the Township 
Board Room on January 16.  Along the same lines, I participated in 
the viewing of the inauguration of the 44th President, also held in 
the Board Room.   
 
I attended the WCCSWM meeting held last month at the Leslie 
Science Center.  We also were given a tour of the facility there and 
it was quite interesting as to how they recycle water for secondary 
uses as well as the solar energy collection through their roof.   



 
I had several meetings with Michael Saranen with regard to the 
DEQ’s concern over the low DO levels that occur infrequently just 
past the dam.  We prepared a response to them which does include 
the possibility of doing aeration in the lake.  We followed these 
discussions by meeting with the 3 full-time officials to keep them 
up to date on these matters, including the budgetary implications of 
this.   
 
I met with Brian of Waste Management to discuss some general 
issues that have come up over the past few months and to discuss 
the routing of their crews.   
 
I attended the Economic Development meeting called by Brenda 
here at the Township.  Kirk Profit and Rolland Sizemore, Jr. and 
Michael Finney of Spark also attended from the outside in an effort 
to get a better collaborative effort to improve the development 
here.  
 
I attended the Ypsilanti Pride meeting held last week along with 
Larry Doe.  The Pride date for 2009 is May 16.   
 
I met with Carl Rowsey from the Compost Site to go over the 
budget for 2009 and to do some long term planning.  We hope to 
get a new computerized system out at the gate as well as replace 
the existing gate with a new one.  We are also exploring moving 
the holding bins further from the gate to help with access in and 
out of the site.   
 
I was very involved in the printer/copier purchase and set up here 
at the Civic Center along with Travis and Mike Radzik.  We are in 
the process of trying to find a home for some of the extra 
equipment, ie.  Fax machines and copiers.   
 



The boiler project is complete as the state boiler inspector has 
approved the project and certified the boilers.  Our 1 year warranty 
will run until February 13, 2010.  
 
 
The Hydro Station continues to operate safely and efficiently.  The 
Project continues to get routine safety inspections and 
maintenance.  The month of January the Station did not experience 
any down time and had an above average production.  Operators 
handled 2 off hour alarms for water levels. 
 
In late January the Comcast communication line which handles the 
day to day IT systems was shut off for nonpayment.  This resulted 
in loss employee productivity and monitoring operations remotely. 
 
 
 
Production 
Month: January- 09   
    
    
  Estimated  
 MWH Est. Delivered  Gross  

Contract 
Energy                  741.057 

 $ 
34,493.14  

Non Contract 
Energy                  400.113 

 $   
4,449.25  

Total 
Energy                1,141.169 

 $ 
38,942.39  

    
    

 Administration Charge
  $   
1,135.46   

 Rider Charge
 $      

312.00   



 
Total Edison Charges 

to Ford Lake
  $   
1,447.46   

 Escrow Agreement 
 $   

3,712.69   

 Total Deductions 
  $   
5,160.16   

    

 
Est. Obligation by 
Deco to Ford Lake

 $ 
33,782.23   

 
 
Completed Work: 
2008 Summary Report 
 
 
Ongoing Work: 
2009 Emergency Plan Functional Exercise 
Review Preliminary Plan for an artificial mixing system for Ford 
Lake 
 
Up Coming: 
Annual Operation Monitoring Report (FERC Required) 
Detailed design of artificial mixing system for Ford Lake 
 
 
Sargent Charles Dam and Tyler Dam 
 
Each dam continues to get routine safety inspections and 
maintenance. 
 
Ongoing work: 
Slope improvements (removing trees, shrubs and establishing 
grass) at Sargent Charles Dam 
 
 



 
WORK SESSION AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

 
 

** PLEASE NOTE LATER START TIME ** 
 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 

CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 
 

 
 
1. Fire Department Discussion and Update 
 
2. Review Agenda 

 
3. Board Members – Other Discussion 

        
 



 
 
 
 
 

Civil Service 
Commission 

 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 
www.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
January 25, 2009 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
Re: Fire Chief Vacancy 
 
At the Regular Meeting held on January 21, 2009, the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Civil Service Commission discussed the fire chief vacancy. 
 
It is the position of the Civil Service Commission that the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Board of Trustees should follow Act 78 of 1935 and immediately begin 
the process of hiring the applicant in the #1 position on the fire chief eligibility list. 
 
If you have any questions, do not hesitate to call. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 

Martha Warren, President 
Civil Service Commission 
 
cc: Township Board 
 Civil Service Commission 
 Karen Wallin, HR Generalist 
 Keith Harr, President Local 1830 
 File 
 



 
 

Ypsilanti Township Firefighters Association 
Local # 1830 

222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, Michigan 48198 
 
 

To: The Ypsilanti Township Board Members 
 
From: IAFF Local 1830 Ypsilanti Township Fire Department 
 
Date: 02/06/2009 
 
Re: Ypsilanti Township Fire Chief Position 
 
 
Board Members, 
 
 
 Local 1830 request that the Ypsilanti Township Board authorize the Human Resource 
department to hire a new Fire Chief in accordance with Public Act 78.  We would ask 
that this be put on the next regularly scheduled board meeting. We believe that it is in the 
best interest of the citizens of Ypsilanti Township to be duly represented by their own 
Chief. Of course, we are always willing to engage the Township in discussions which 
might lead to savings and efficiency for the Ypsilanti Township Fire Department and its 
citizens.  
  
 



 
 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

BOARD MEMBERS 
OTHER DISCUSSION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
       
 BRENDA L. STUMBO, SUPERVISOR 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI KAREN LOVEJOY ROE, CLERK 
REGULAR MEETING LARRY J. DOE, TREASURER 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2009 TRUSTEES:    
 JEAN HALL CURRIE 
 STAN ELDRIDGE 
 MIKE MARTIN 
 DEE SIZEMORE 
 

 

REVISED AGENDA 
 

 
 
TIME AND PLACE   7:00 P.M.  YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP CIVIC CENTER 
        BOARD ROOM 
        7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
4. MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 3, 2009 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING 

 
5. SUPERVISOR REPORT 

6. CLERK REPORT 
 
7. TREASURER REPORT 
 

A. JANUARY 2009 
 
8. TRUSTEE REPORT 
 
9. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING – ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE CALCULATION FOR 
CLARK EAST TOWERS, YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 

 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. PROPOSED VERIZON WIRELESS COMMUNICATION TOWER TO BE LOCATED ON 

EMERICK STREET IN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP (Tabled at the December 2, 2008, December 16, 2008, 
January 20, 2009 and February 3, 2009 Regular Meetings) 

 
   
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. RESOLUTION NO. 2009-3, AMENDING RESOLUTION 2005-50, PREPAYMENT OF BILLS 
 
2. PROPOSAL FROM BARR ENGINEERING COMPANY FOR FORD LAKE AERATION 

SPECIFICATIONS, NOT TO EXCEED $ 65,000.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM # 
212.212.000.801.100 

 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti Page 2 Agenda – 02/17/09 
  

 
 
3. PROPOSAL TO RETAIN POST, SMYTHE, LUTZ AND ZIEL TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL 

ACCOUNTING SERVICES, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-202-000-803-000 
 
4. REQUEST OF GROVE ROAD, LLC FOR A ONE-YEAR EXTENSION OF THE PRELIMINARY 

SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR THE WEST GROVE SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
5. CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FRAUD POLICY 
 
6. 2009 AGREEMENTS WITH: 
 

A. ANN ARBOR SPARK AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000, 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-884-000 

 
B. ANN ARBOR SPARK (SPARK EAST) AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$5,000, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-884-000 
 
7. RESOLUTION 2009-4 - FIRE PROTECTION, PREVENTION, RESCUE SERVICES AND 

EQUIPMENT RESERVES 
 
8. RESOLUTION 2009-5 - POLICE PROTECTION 
 
9. RESOLUTION 2009-6 - RECREATION, BIKE PATH, SIDEWALK, ROADS, PARKS, GENERAL 

OPERATIONS FUND 
 
10. RESOLUTION 2009-7 - GARBAGE, REFUSE COLLECTION, RECYCLING, COMPOSTING, 

DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE, ENERGY CONSERVATION, ALTERNATIVE ENERGY, WATER 
QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
 
STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 
 
(REVISED:  02/13/09 – 4:12 p.m.) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 



     CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 3, 2009 REGULAR MEETING 

 
PROPOSED 

 
The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo at approximately 7:00 
p.m. in the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silent prayer 
was observed. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees Jean Hall Currie, Stan 
Eldridge, Mike Martin and Dee Sizemore 

 
Members Absent: None 
 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters and Dennis McLain 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Terry Mathew, Township Resident asked the Board for assistance in getting Merritt 
Road repaved and getting improvements made to Munger Road between Merritt and 
Textile Roads. 
 
Lyle Tindall, Township Resident announced a tentative meeting scheduled for the newly 
created Eastern Washtenaw County Democrats Club at 2:00 p.m. on Saturday, 
February 28, 2009 at Pittsfield Township Hall.  
 
 
MINUTES  
 
A. JANUARY 15, 2009 SPECIAL MEETING AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
B. JANUARY 20, 2009 WORK SESSION, REGULAR MEETING AND EXECUTIVE 

SESSION 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve the minutes of the January 15, 2009 Special Meeting and Executive 
Session and the January 20, 2009 Work Session, Regular Meeting and Executive 
Session, with corrections outlined at the Work Session. The motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

SUPERVISOR REPORT 
 
Supervisor Stumbo provided an in-depth overview of meetings attended by officials and 
Township staff.  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
FEBRUARY 3, 2009 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 
 
Supervisor Stumbo announced Congressman Dingell would set the record for the 
longest serving member of Congress on February 14, 2009 and the Board would be 
recognizing his years of service and his contributions to the community. 
 
 
CLERK REPORT 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe provided an overview of the workshops attended at the MTA 
Conference. She paid tribute to Joe Lewis, a longtime Ypsilanti Township supporter and 
provided his funeral arrangements. 
 
 
TRUSTEE REPORT 
 
Trustee Currie invited the Board to the Brown Chapel Annual Brotherhood Banquet on 
February 27, 2009. She reported that she attended a newsletter workshop at the MTA 
Conference and thought Ypsilanti Township should have a newsletter to keep residents 
informed. 
 
Trustee Martin said the most interesting workshop he attended at the MTA Conference 
was working with the road commission on county and private roads. 
 
Trustee/Fire Commissioner Eldridge provided a brief overview of areas being addressed 
at the Fire Department. He said the Board was welcome to do a ride-along with the 
firefighters. 
 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
Attorney Winters provided a brief summary of the Court of Appeals hearing 
regarding the lawsuit against the Washtenaw County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Attorney Winters provided an overview of the correlation between home 
foreclosures and the increase in public nuisance complaints. 
 
A. YPSILANTI MOBILE VILLAGE UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters provided an update on the Ypsilanti Mobile Village lawsuit. He felt the 
most important provision of the stipulated order required inspection of any additional 
mobile homes prior to being brought into the park and stated that these homes could 
not be occupied until a Certificate of Occupancy was issued by the Township. 
 
B. JARVIS LAWSUIT UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters reiterated the Court of Appeals decision to uphold the rezoning denial 
and stated Jarvis and Associates had decided not to appeal their case to the Supreme 
Court. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
FEBRUARY 3, 2009 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 3 
 
 
Supervisor Stumbo announced David Nicholson, Planning Director had received the 
Award of Excellence from the Michigan Association of Planners. She said the Board 
appreciated his expertise, knowledge and leadership of the Planning Department and 
his role in economic development for the Township. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. PROPOSED VERIZON WIRELESS COMMUNICATION TOWER TO BE LOCATED 

ON EMERICK STREET IN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP (Tabled at the December 2, 
2008, December 16, 2008 and January 20, 2009 Regular Meeting) 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Currie, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to remove 
the proposed Verizon Wireless Communication Tower to be located on Emerick 
Street in Ypsilanti Township from the table. The motion carried as follows: 
 
Martin: Yes Eldridge: Yes Currie: Yes Sizemore: Yes 
Roe: Yes Doe: Yes Stumbo: Yes  
 
Jonathan Crane, Verizon Attorney thanked the Board for their patience and provided an 
extensive presentation with photos on the communication tower approved by the 
Planning Commission and of the flagpole design requested by the Board. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe questioned if Verizon planned to co-locate if the monopole design 
was approved.   
 
Mr. Crane responded it would be available for shared use and they had already 
received two requests from other carriers to relocate to the Verizon monopole if it was 
approved. He said Verizon regularly shared space. 
 
David Nicholson, Planning Director asked if Verizon had done any computation on the 
size of the flag that would be necessary for the proposed flagpole design. If the flag was 
not in proportion with the pole, he felt it would lose the effectiveness of the structure.  
 
Trustee Martin asked if a flag could be placed on the shroud design and how it would be 
lit. 
 
Mr. Crane stated he thought it would be possible but the flag would be below the 
shrouds and would be lit from the ground.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo thanked him for Verizon’s effort in providing a flagpole design and 
wished the information had been provided earlier so the Board could have reviewed it 
prior to the meeting. She said the agenda item before the Board was a special land use 
and site plan but any change in the pole design would also change the site plan, which 
would require Planning Commission approval. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
FEBRUARY 3, 2009 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 4 
 
 
Mr. Nicholson stated he could not recommend site plan approval because he had not 
had the opportunity to review what had been presented. He asked the Board to defer 
action on the site plan but if they proceeded with an element of the approval process, 
that approval of the special land use be contingent upon site plan approval by the 
Board. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Sizemore to 
table the item until the February 17, 2009 Regular Meeting. The motion carried as 
follows: 
 
Martin: Yes Eldridge: Yes Currie: Yes Sizemore: Yes 
Roe: Yes Doe: Yes Stumbo: Yes  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Currie, supported by Trustee Sizemore to approve 
Budget Amendment #3 (see attached). The motion carried unanimously. 

 
2. WASHTENAW COUNTY WEBSITE DESIGN PROPOSAL, NOT TO EXCEED 

$9,000, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-266-000-801-050 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve the Washtenaw County Website Design Proposal, in an amount not to 
exceed $9,000, budgeted in line item #101-266-000-801-050 (see attached). The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. CONTRACT WITH RICHARD PAUL AND ASSOCIATES, IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$650.00 TO PROVIDE MUSIC FOR THE ANNUAL DADDY DAUGHTER DANCE 
ON FEBRUARY 14, 2009, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 101-751-000-740-000 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Currie to 
approve the contract with Richard Paul and Associates, in the amount of $650.00 
to provide music for the Daddy Daughter Dance on February 14, 2009, budgeted 
in line item #101-751-000-740-000 (see attached). The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
4. AGREEMENT WITH WEST SHORE SERVICES, INC. TO MAINTAIN OUTDOOR 

WARNING SIRENS IN 2009, IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,900.00, BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #206-206-000-933-001 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to 
approve the agreement with West Shore Services, Inc. to maintain outdoor 
warning sirens in 2009, in the amount of $3,900.00, budgeted in line item #206-
206-000-933-001 (see attached). The motion carried unanimously. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
FEBRUARY 3, 2009 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 5 
 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
Authorize: 
 
A. The request of Michael Saranen, Hydro Operation Manager to waive the Township’s 

Financial Policy and authorize the purchase of a water quality monitoring sensor 
from Fondriest Environmental, a single-source vendor, in the amount of $10,375, 
budgeted in line item #212-212-000-801-100. 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Martin to 
approve Authorizations and Bids. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Sizemore to approve 
Statements and Checks, in the amount of $439,544.02. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to 
adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Charter Township of Ypsilanti        



     CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 3, 2009 WORK SESSION 

 
PROPOSED 

 
The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo at approximately 6:00 
p.m. in the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township.  
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees Jean Hall Currie, Stan 
Eldridge, Mike Martin and Dee Sizemore 

 
Members Absent: None 
 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
 
 
1. DISCUSS POSSIBLE CHANGE OF BOARD MEETING DATES 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe explained that recent Board agendas were very small and asked if 
the Board would be interested in changing the Board meetings to once a month. She 
suggested the third Tuesday of the month to best accommodate the Treasurer, 
Accounting Department, committee reports, and election dates. The change would 
provide savings in relation to printing costs, duplication and the time required to 
assemble and distribute Board packets. Clerk Roe stated if the meetings were changed, 
the Board would be asked to keep the first Tuesday of the month open in case a special 
meeting was needed. The Planning Commission changed their meetings to once a 
month and it had worked well. She said the revised meeting dates could be placed on 
the next Board agenda, if the Board so desired. Discussion followed. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said the current agenda started with only one item and it was a 
struggle to provide additional items. She said the Board may want to consider having 
some of the summer meetings at a public location. One meeting a month in the summer 
and taking it out to the community was something that had always been done. 
 
At the direction of the Board, Clerk Lovejoy Roe would bring a revised meeting schedule 
to the next meeting. 
 
 
2. REVIEW AGENDA 
 
MINUTES 
 
A. JANUARY 15, 2009 SPECIAL MEETING AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
B. JANUARY 20, 2009 WORK SESSION, REGULAR MEETING AND EXECUTIVE 

SESSION 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
FEBRUARY 3, 2009 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 
 
Trustee Martin stated there were two typos in the minutes. In the January 15, 2009 
Special Meeting minutes, the call to order needed to be changed from 7 p.m. to 1 p.m. 
and in the January 20, 2009 Regular Meeting minutes, the second item under New 
Business did not state the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the minutes could be approved at the Board meeting with the 
corrections outlined at the Work Session. 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. PROPOSED VERIZON WIRELESS COMMUNICATION TOWER TO BE 

LOCATED ON EMERICK STREET IN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP (Tabled at the 
December 2, 2008, December 16, 2008 and January 20, 2009 Regular 
Meeting) 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated a letter had been distributed to the Board from Mr. Crane and 
Verizon was evaluating the Board’s request for a flagpole design. She noted that Mr. 
Crane would be attending the Board meeting. 
 
   
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the amendment was for the website design. 
 
2. WASHTENAW COUNTY WEBSITE DESIGN PROPOSAL, NOT TO EXCEED 

$9,000, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-266-000-801-050 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that Andy Brush would be at the meeting to answer any 
questions the Board may have regarding the website proposal. Discussion followed. 
 
3. CONTRACT WITH RICHARD PAUL AND ASSOCIATES, IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$650.00 TO PROVIDE MUSIC FOR THE ANNUAL DADDY DAUGHTER 
DANCE ON FEBRUARY 14, 2009, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 101-751-000-
740-000 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that the contract provided music for two dances on February 
14, 2009. This was an annual event held at the Recreation Department and the public 
was invited. 
 
 
4. AGREEMENT WITH WEST SHORE SERVICES, INC. TO MAINTAIN 

OUTDOOR WARNING SIRENS IN 2009, IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,900.00, 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #206-206-000-933-001 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
FEBRUARY 3, 2009 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 3 
 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this was a maintenance agreement for the outdoor warning 
sirens and the siren locations had been verified by the Fire Department. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated that David Nicholson, Planning Director was presented an 
Award of Excellence by the Michigan Association of Planners. 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
Clerk Stumbo stated the request was to waive the financial policy and approve the 
purchase of a water quality monitoring sensor from a single source vendor for the 
continued effort in monitoring the algae in Ford Lake.  
 
3. BOARD MEMBERS – OTHER DISCUSSION 
 
Mike Radzik provided an update on the new printers and asked if eBay could be used to 
sell equipment that would not be used elsewhere in the Township. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said it was past practice to obtain Board approval to sell on eBay 
and it should be presented at the next Board meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:32 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti        



SUPERVISOR REPORT 
 
 

There is no written Supervisor Report 
 



CLERK REPORT 
 

There is no written Clerk Report 



         OFFICE OF THE TREASURER
                     LARRY J. DOE

MONTHLY TREASURER'S  REPORT
JANUARY 1, 2009 THROUGH  JANUARY 31, 2009 

Account Name Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance
ABN AMRO Series "B" Debt Red. Cap.Int. 210,540.54 210,540.54
Bicycle Path 730,287.33 50,738.46 162,015.48 619,010.31
Bonds & Escrow 1,063,508.98 4,025.07 63,369.10 1,004,164.95
Building Department Fund 261,801.48 26,265.00 32,197.32 255,869.16
Capital Improvement 2006 Bond Fund 359,011.09 29.08 1,057.50 357,982.67
Capitalized Interest Debt 2006 Bond Fund 127,826.00 10.35 112.50 127,723.85
Comerica Series B Bond 2,711.21 0.57 25.12 2,686.66
Compost Site 842,093.30 7,739.14 12,155.96 837,676.48
Current Tax Collections 11,192,058.68 4,534,524.59 2,716,749.98 13,009,833.29
Economic Development 66,699.03 5.40 0.00 66,704.43
Environmental Clean-up 439,912.37 180.08 0.00 440,092.45
Environmental Services 3,299,440.34 1,555.50 178,220.05 3,122,775.79
Fire Department 3,449,077.37 1,705.79 332,854.18 3,117,928.98
Fire Withholding Bonds 20,438.40 1.61 0.00 20,440.01
General Fund/Recreation 4,025,862.87 987,860.63 965,346.29 4,048,377.21
General Obligation 597,184.99 190.73 0.00 597,375.72
General Tax Collection 23,648.24 2,896.67 4,327.31 22,217.60
Green Oaks Golf Course 20,357.63 50,008.45 40,732.85 29,633.23
Hydro Station Fund 277,982.76 28,705.81 15,982.63 290,705.94
Law Enforcement Fund 2,489,571.07 1,003.69 85,976.22 2,404,598.54
LDFA Tax 228.18 0.02 0.00 228.20
Motor Pool 736,561.90 286.45 4,217.08 732,631.27
Nuisance Abatement Fund 42,823.82 7,309.08 915.00 49,217.90
Parks Fund 17,424.78 1.42 464.87 16,961.33
Payroll 80,861.85 865,266.18 842,327.75 103,800.28
Public Improvement 418,327.37 159.59 0.00 418,486.96
Rental Inspections 5,134.34 62,495.43 0.00 67,629.77
Series "A" Bond Payments 1,289.26 0.10 0.00 1,289.36
Series "B" Cap. Cost of Funds 39,914.99 115.74 0.00 40,030.73
State Grants 17,767.79 1.44 0.00 17,769.23
Willow Run Escrow 140,441.64 124.08 0.00 140,565.72

GRAND  TOTAL 31,000,789.60 6,633,206.15 5,459,047.19 32,174,948.56



 
 

TRUSTEE REPORT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 









































 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2009-3 

 
Amending Resolution No. 2005-50 

 
PAYMENT OF RECURRING BILLS 

 
 
 
 WHEREAS during the 2000 Audit report by the Township auditor, 

Post, Smythe, Lutz & Ziel during a working session held on June 19, 2001, 

it was recommended that a resolution be adopted for payment of recurring 

bills in order to avoid late fees and/or charges and to take advantage of 

discounts; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township 

of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees hereby authorizes payment of the following 

recurring bills in advance of regular Board meetings, all subject to later 

ratification by the Board: 

 

 Current & General Tax Collection Checks 

 Friend of the Court 

 Health Care/Dental Care Providers 

 Insurance Providers 

 Internal Revenue Service 

 Manulife 

 MERS 

 Phone Service/Internet Providers 

 State of Michigan 

 Utility Service Provider 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Hydro Station 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 483-0776 
Fax:  (734) 544-3626 

www.ytown.org 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  February 2, 2009 
 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 
CC:  Jeff Allen, Travis McDugald 
 
From: Michael Saranen, Hydro Operation Manager 
      
Subject:  Comcast  

 
I would like to place a request of the February 17, 2009 Board Agenda, a request to 
amend Resolution # 2005-50 “Prepayment of Bills” to include Comcast, a utility service, 
which provides communication service to the Hydro Station. 
 
Please contact me with any questions. 

http://www.ytown.org/


 
 
 
 
 

Hydro Station 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 483-0776 
Fax:  (734) 544-3626 

www.ytown.org 

 

 
Date:  February 9, 2009 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
CC:  Jeff Allen, RSD Director 
From: Michael Saranen, Hydro Operator 
      
Subject: Barr Proposal for Ford Lake Aeration Alternatives Evaluation 
 
 
I would like to submit to your office a proposal from Barr Engineering Company to be 
placed on the February 17, 2009 board agenda to allow the authorization to proceed to 
complete a technical study to establish specifications for an aeration system for Ford 
Lake. 
 
In December 2008, Barr prepared a preliminary design for the Township.  The WCAC, 
Professor Lehman of the University of Michigan,  Jeff Allen, and I reviewed the design.  
The preliminary design gave us the realization that this is a large scale project with a long 
term commitment.   
 
Many comments surfaced from the review which leads us in the need for a very detailed 
report to ensure the system’s safety, functionality, and reliability.  This report will present 
the system needs to achieve the state’s minimum requirement of 5 mg/l of dissolve 
oxygen and the Township’s interest to reduce the nuisance algae blooms that occur each 
summer.  Furthermore, the report will outline permitting, installation cost, and operation 
and maintenance cost both short and long term.   
 
This expenditure is budgeted in the 2009 budget under line item # 212.212.000.801.100.  
The cost is not to exceed $ 65,000.00 without Township approval. 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions, I am planning on attending the February 17, 

2009 Board Meeting. 

http://www.ytown.org/


 

 

 

 

Barr Engineering Company 
450 South Wagner Road • Ann Arbor, MI  48103 
Phone: 734-327-1200 • Fax: 734-327-1212 • www.barr.com An EEO Employer 
 
Minneapolis, MN • Hibbing, MN • Duluth, MN • Ann Arbor, MI • Jefferson City, MO • Bismarck, ND  

 

 

February 9, 2009 

 

Jeff Allen 
Residential Services Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Dr. 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 
 

Re:  Proposal for Ford Lake Aeration Alternatives Evaluation 

 
Dear Mr. Allen: 
 
Barr Engineering Co. is pleased to present our proposal for evaluating in-lake aeration alternatives at 
Ford Lake. This proposal presents a scope of work for completing an evaluation of alternatives and a 
cost estimate for installing an aeration system in Ford Lake that would increase the dissolved oxygen 
concentration (DO) in the hypolimnion (lower layers) of Ford Lake. The following pages illustrate 
our understanding of the project and our proposed scope of work. Relevant project experience is 
profiled in Attachment A. 
 

Project Background 

Low DO in the hypolimnion of Ford Lake during summer months has been linked to the release of 
nutrients from the sediments, resulting in nuisance algal blooms. Additionally, there have been 
instances where low-DO water has been released through the turbines and sluice gates at the dam, 
resulting in violations of the state-issued water quality certification for the dam’s hydroelectric 
generation facility. An ongoing study conducted by Professor John Lehman at the University of 
Michigan suggests that the summer algal blooms may be prevented by increasing the DO in the 
hypolimnion. Increasing the DO in the hypolimnion would also likely improve the DO of the water 
being released by the hydroelectric facility. The DO in the hypolimnion could be increased by either 
(or both) increasing the mixing of the surface waters (epilimnion) with the bottom waters 
(hypolimnion) or aerating (adding oxygen to) the hypolimnion.  
 

Project Understanding and Study Goals 

Barr understands that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti is interested in an aeration system for Ford 
Lake that will meet two objectives: 1) maintain a dissolved oxygen concentration of 5 mg/L in the 
hydropower discharge, and 2) eliminate or reduce the nuisance algae blooms in Ford Lake. We 

http://www.barr.com/


Jeff Allen, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
February 3, 2009 
Page 2 

 

 

understand that the system should be designed to meet these objectives during normal flow 
condidtions, low flow conditions, and periods of very little natural mixing. Our preliminary design 
will consider operations and maintenance issues as well as the need for ongoing staff monitoring to be 
able to verify that the system is working properly. We will consider both short- and long-term system 
costs in recommending an efficient and reliable preliminary design for the Ford Lake project. Barr 
understands that the Township is concerned with the effects of zebra mussels and sediment 
resuspension/release on the system, and our sediment and water quality experts will consider these 
effects throughout the design of the system. A considerable amount of research and data collection 
has been conducted by Professor John Lehman at the University of Michigan, and Barr staff will draw 
on the available information as much as possible. Since Barr also understands that the Township has 
safety concerns about structures in or at the surface of the water, we will avoid using such structures 
in our preliminary design.  
 
The goals of the study are as follows: 

• Identify an aerator design that can maintain a dissolved oxygen concentration in the discharge 
from the dam of at least 5 mg/L at all times. 

• Through the use of an advanced water quality model, identify whether the use of aeration can 
reduce the magnitude and frequency of algal blooms in Ford Lake. Identify two to three  
alternative mitigation measures if it is determined that aeration alone will not be able to lead 
to meaningful improvements in lake clarity by reducing algal blooms. 

• Identify an aerator design that can evenly distribute dissolved oxygen in bottom waters such 
that internal phosphorus loading can potentially be inhibited via the reduction of summer 
anaerobic conditions above lake bottom sediment. 

 

Scope of Work 

The scope of work involves: (1) developing and using a detailed reservoir hydrodynamic and water 
quality model to test the effectiveness of multiple aerator designs and to define design aspects of the 
aeration system, (2) assessing the feasibility and costs of installing such a system.   
 
Task A – Reservoir hydrodynamic and water quality model 

The reservoir hydrodynamic and water quality model (called DYRESM/ELCOM-CAEDYM and 
referred to in this proposal as DYRESM) will be used to define key design parameters: 

• location and depth of aeration device placement,  
• airflow rates, and  
• operational parameters such as the length of operation during each year.   

 
DYRESM will also be used to quantify how phosphorus levels, algal growth, and lake clarity can be 
expected to change with the installation of the aeration system.  DYRESM is a complete one- and 
three-dimensional hydraulic model that simulates the movement of water flowing into a reservoir. It 
also simulates the transport of water from the surface to the bottom and from the bottom to the 
surface of the reservoir water column. Because this model considers lake stratification, mixing due to 
wind, inflows, and thermal structure (as a function of solar radiation, air temperature, and wind) and 



Jeff Allen, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
February 3, 2009 
Page 3 

 

 

the effect of a bubble plume on stratification, it will be an important tool as we evaluate potential 
water quality benefits of given designs and their associated costs. 
 
The reservoir model will be developed and “calibrated” to define several aspects of Ford Lake, 
including seasonal changes in lake stratification and mixing, rate of algae and phosphorus settling, 
sediment oxygen demand, the relationship between oxygen levels in bottom waters and the rate of 
phosphorus release from lake sediments, and the rate of algal growth and phosphorus levels in the 
water column.  This model simulates physical, chemical, and biological rates and kinetics to define 
how the ecological system of a lake functions.  
 
Evaluating lake response 

One of the primary benefits of using the DYRESM model is that we can use it to evaluate the 
response of the lake to the construction and operation of the aeration system before it is installed.  
Aeration will cause the lake to change in several ways, and DYRESM will evaluate these changes: 

• Sediment oxygen demand: Sediment oxygen demand will increase in response to the 
addition of an aerator as the oxygen availability and bottom temperatures increase. These 
changes can be modeled in DYRESM using a kinetic equation (Michaelis Menton) that 
relates dissolved oxygen in bottom waters and temperature to maximum potential sediment 
oxygen demand. 

• Phosphorus balance:  Aeration has the potential to reduce internal phosphorus loading 
(from the lake bottom sediments) but it will also transport bottom waters to the surface.  It is 
expected that aeration may reduce phosphorus levels in surface waters but it may also reduce 
phosphorus settling because particulate phosphorus will be reintroduced in the epilimnion. 
Through this modeling effort, we will evaluate these opposing effects, manage expected 
benefits with the aeration system, and perform post-construction evaluation of how the 
system is meeting established goals. 

• Phytoplankton and clarity: We will make predictions about the effect of changes in 
phosphorus levels on phytoplankton growth and lake clarity. We will also consult with Dr. 
John Lehman at the University of Michigan to identify the composition and abundance of 
phytoplankton species in Ford Lake, and any other information he may have regarding 
distribution and growth characteristics.  

• Optional Item: One of the potential problems with aeration may be that the lake sediments 
do not have enough iron to bind phosphorus in the sediments. Aeration causes iron to 
oxidize, and when it is oxidized it can bind phosphorus in the sediments. If the sediment has 
excess iron, then aeration will be more effective. If it does not have excess iron, then the 
aeration system will be less effective at reducing internal loading. We will conduct modeling 
assuming that excess iron will be available.  Evaluation of iron in the lake sediments is 
provided as an optional item in the cost.  

 
Specific items within Task A: 

• We will develop a detailed DYRESM/ELCOM-CAEDYM water quality model of Ford Lake. 
We will calibrate the model to the existing (non-aerated) conditions using available water 
quality and physical data collected by the University of Michigan for Ford Lake and the 



Jeff Allen, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
February 3, 2009 
Page 4 

 

 

inflows. There may be a need to measure iron concentrations in the sediments, depending on 
the availability of the data. The cost for Barr to collect and analyze roughly four sediment 
cores for iron concentration is listed as an optional item in the section on fees, below.   

• Once the water quality model is constructed and calibrated, through a process of trial and 
error, we will experiment with up to five different aerator designs in the model to test the 
ability of various aerator designs to meet the project objectives. Aerator design parameters to 
be tested include volume of air flow, the number and location of aerators, and the depth of 
deployment of aerators. We will also identify two or three additional measures (in addition to 
air bubbler aerators) if it is determined that the effectiveness of the aerators needs to be 
improved. Such measures may include the addition of iron, alum treatment, and the addition 
of pure oxygen to the hypolimnion.  

• We will indentify a recommended aerator type and configuration, and use the DYRESM 
model to predict expected changes in whole lake water quality resulting from the installation 
of the recommended alternative. Water quality parameters that will be examined include 
temperature, dissolved oxygen, phosphorus (dissolved and total), nitrogen (nitrate, nitrite and 
organic forms), particulate and dissolved organic carbon, total dissolved solids, zooplankton 
(if the data are available) and chlorophyll a as a surrogate for phytoplankton.  Other 
parameters that can also be modeled include iron and manganese release from sediment (if 
the data are available). 

 
Task B - Assess existing power system 

Preliminary designs indicate that the blower system that will supply compressed air to the lake 
aerators may be 50 to 75 hp in size. Such large electric motors will require a substantial power 
supply. Barr will work with the Township to assess the existing nearby power system voltages and 
capacity at two potential sites: Lakeside Park and the hydro station. Based on information on the 
existing electrical infrastructure provided by the Township, we will assess whether the existing 
electrical systems are adequate and identify required system improvements. Improvements may 
require the installation of equipment such as circuit breakers, switches, transformers, motor starters, 
and overhead lines and/or buried cables. Barr will provide preliminary cost estimates for required 
improvements to the existing power system. This task does not include the actual design or 
installation of any improvements.  
 
Task C - Site assessment 

Preliminary designs indicate that the blower system that will supply compressed air to the lake 
aerators may be 50 to 75 hp, and roughly the size of a small garden shed. The selection of a location 
for the blower system may depend on a number of considerations, including noise, safety, 
maintenance access, and constructability. Barr will work with Township staff to assess the pros and 
cons of locating the blowers at two potential sites: Lakeside Park and the hydro station. Barr will 
provide preliminary cost estimates for recommended site improvements. This task does not include 
the actual design or installation of any improvements.  
 



Jeff Allen, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
February 3, 2009 
Page 5 

 

 

Task D - Operation and maintenance costs 

An aeration system at Ford Lake will require some level of effort and cost to operate and maintain. 
Possible maintenance considerations include motor/blower maintenance, motor housing upkeep, life 
expectancy and maintenance of aeration membranes, and issues related to zebra mussels. Barr will 
summarize the suggested maintenance schedule and costs as well as operating costs for the 
recommended alternative.  
 
Task E - Permit/license planning 

The installation of an aeration system in Ford Lake may require permits from the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) - Division of Land and Water Management and from 
the US Army Corps of Engineers, depending on the design, size, and operation of the system. Barr 
will summarize the permitting process, timelines, and fees for the recommended alternative. Barr will 
also estimate the cost to prepare a permit application and to acquire any additional required data or 
plans. 
 
The installation of a blower system at either the hydro station or at Lakeside Park may require land 
use and/or building permits from local governments. Barr will summarize the permitting process, 
timelines, and fees for permits required for the recommended design. Barr will also estimate the cost 
to prepare a permit application and to acquire any additional required data or plans. This task does not 
include the actual design or installation of any improvements.  
 
The Ford Lake hydropower project is currently licensed by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC), and the project holds a Section 401 Clean Water Certification from the MDEQ 
– Surface Water Assessment Section. Additionally, the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) 
reviews modifications to the Ford Lake Dam power house structure. Barr will consult with the FERC, 
the MDEQ, and the SHPO regarding applicable approval/permitting processes from these agencies for 
the recommended alternative.   
 

Deliverables 

Barr will provide four hard copies of a project report summarizing our methods and findings of the 
water quality modeling, and a recommended aerator alternative. The recommended aerator alternative 
will include the sizing and general location of the blower motor assembly (hydro station or Lakeview 
Park) and a summary of necessary power improvements, permitting issues, and maintenance/safety 
issues. The report will contain a cost estimate and timeline to implement the recommended 
alternative. The report will discuss additional treatment methods that can be implemented along with 
an aerator to further improve the water quality in Ford Lake if it is determined that aeration alone will 
not be capable of meaningful improvements in lake clarity. Barr will present the findings and 
recommendations of our study to the Township Board.  
 



Jeff Allen, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
February 3, 2009 
Page 6 

 

 

Schedule  

Barr will complete the work described above within 90 days of your authorization to proceed.  
 

Fee 

Barr will complete the work described above on a time and materials basis, not to exceed an amount 
of $65,000 without your authorization. This price includes $3,900 for sampling sediment iron 
concentrations that may or may not be required, depending on the availability of the data. 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal for the Ford Lake aeration design. Please feel 
free to contact David Hibbs at (734) 922-4437 if you should have any questions or require additional 
information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

          
Daniel Umfleet, P.E., Vice President       David Hibbs, P.E. 
Principal in Charge            Project Manager 
 
 
 
Attachment A – Relevant Project Experience 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C: Michael Saranen, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



Attachment A – Relevant Project Experience 
 
 
The following project descriptions illustrate Barr’s experience with modeling and evaluating, 
aerators and lake water quality, as well as our power system capabilities. 
 
 



Barr Engineering Company 

Model output showing lake stratification (red-yellow 
colors = warm; blue = cool) 

No aeration (dissolved oxygen in water column) 

 

With aeration (dissolved oxygen in the water column)

Model output showing internal phosphorus loading  

(red and yellow colors on the bottom of the figure) Model output showing phytoplankton distribution in 
the Long Lake water column. 

Modeling to Design a Mixing and Aeration System 
Valley Branch Watershed District • Oakdale, Minnesota 

Services provided: 

• Water quality and lake response modeling 

• Hydrologic monitoring and modeling 

• Sediment chemistry evaluation 

• Lake restoration implementation and oversight 

Barr developed a DYRESM model to size a mixing system 
and to evaluate the response of the lake to the installation 
of such a system in Long Lake (Oakdale, Minnesota). This 
system will be installed in 2010.  Long Lake is highly 
stratified and experiences severe dissolved oxygen 
depletion. The mixing system will be installed to increase 
dissolved oxygen levels in the bottom water while still 
allowing the bottom waters to remain cool (note: the 
system was designed specifically to provide partial mixing 
and not complete aeration of the bottom water). The goal 
of this system is to improve habitat for zooplankton 
because the zooplankton populations are severely depleted 
(zooplankton cannot survive in dissolved oxygen-depleted 
waters).  An example of the dissolved oxygen modeling 
outcome is provided in the graphic below (one dimensional 
model output-lake depth versus time).   

Because there was some concern that this aeration 
system may transport phosphorus to the lake surface 
from the bottom, the sediment was also treated with 
alum to inhibit phosphorus release from lake sediments 
(internal loading) during the summer. We used the 
model to develop other predictions such as water 
temperature (stratification), phosphorus, and 
phytoplankton growth.  Below are model outputs 
showing lake stratification, internal phosphorus loading, 
and distribution of phytoplankton (as chlorophyll a).  

 

 



Barr Engineering Company 

Lake bathymetry stratification in Lake DeMontreville for 
2002, which was a cool year 

Lake bathymetry stratification in Lake DeMontreville for 
2007, which was a warm year 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

9-Apr 4-May 29-May 23-Jun 18-Jul 12-Aug 6-Sep 1-Oct 26-Oct

D
is

so
lv

ed
 O

xy
g

en
 (

m
g

/L
)

2002

2007

Low oxygen in 2007 led to severe algal blooms 

Lake DeMontreville Water-Quality Improvement 
Valley Branch Watershed District • Lake Elmo, Minnesota 

 

Services provided: 

• Hydraulic and water-quality modeling 

• Water-quality monitoring 

• Sediment sampling and chemical 
analysis  

• Aquatic plant survey 

• Water-quality improvement 
recommendations 

The Valley Branch Watershed District hired 
Barr to determine why Lake DeMontreville in 
Lake Elmo, Minnesota, was experiencing 
severe algal blooms during some years and 
not during others. Barr conducted stormwater-
runoff-flow and water-quality monitoring and 
modeling, lake water-quality monitoring, 
sediment sampling and chemical analysis, and 
an aquatic plant survey. This led to the 
development of a one-dimensional hydraulic 
and water-quality model. Barr calibrated the 
model to determine the relationship between 
the lake bathymetry (lake depth versus area) 
and how the lake is thermally stratified.  

Using the model, we determined the rate of 
sediment oxygen demand, the rate of 
phosphorus release from the sediment, and the 
rate of phytoplankton growth as a function of 
phosphorus and nitrogen. Barr found that the 
algal/phytoplankton blooms were a function 
of how early in the year the lake stratified. If it 
stratified early in the year, there was severe dissolved oxygen depletion from the lake bottom,  and this 
triggered internal phosphorus loading. When the lake mixed in the late summer, the phosphorus was 
transported to the surface, causing phytoplankton blooms. 

To solve this problem, Barr recommended alum treatment of the bottom sediment to inhibit internal 
phosphorus loading and rainwater gardens to control external loading of phosphorus. 

249181 



Alum Treatment and Sediment Sampling of the Faille Chain of Lakes 
Sauk River Watershed District  •  Sauk Centre, MN 

 

Services provided: 

• Bid plans and specifications 

• Permit applications 

• Alum dose calculations 

• Treatment  plan design 

• Sediment sampling 

 

Each summer, nuisance algal blooms were a major problem in Sauk Centre’s Lake Osakis—a significant 
recreational resource for central Minnesota. Phosphorus, which promotes algae growth, entered the lake 
from Clifford, Stevens, and Faille lakes (the Faille Chain of Lakes). The primary sources of phosphorus 
were effluent from the Osakis municipal wastewater-treatment lagoons, which discharges to Clifford 
Lake each fall, and stormwater runoff from cattle feedlots that had previously operated in the watershed. 
The result was high concentrations of phosphorus in the sediments of the three tributary lakes. 

Barr worked with the Sauk River Watershed 
District on an alum treatment project to 
improve the water quality of Lake Osakis by 
reducing phosphorus inputs from sediment in 
the Faille Chain of Lakes. We collected 
sediment core samples from the three lakes, 
extruded and sectioned them, and sent them out 
for analyses of iron-bound and labile-
phosphorus fractions. Based on the results of 
these analyses, we calculated alum dose rates 
and specified the treatment regimen for the 

lakes, which included the simultaneous application of alum and lime. We also assisted the watershed 
district with the bidding and permitting process.  

In the spring of 2002, Clifford and Faille Lakes were treated (Stevens Lake could not be treated because 
of Minnesota Department of Natural Resources restrictions), resulting in a significant reduction in 
phosphorus levels and algal growth as well as an improvement in the lake’s clarity.  

241293 

Barr Engineering Company 



Tanners Lake Restoration and Water Quality Improvements 
Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed District  •  Oakdale, Minnesota 

 

Services provided: 

• Diagnostic-feasibility study 

• Alum-treatment-facility construction 

• Alum-floc-sedimentation-basin construction 

• Watershed-education-plan implementation 

 

In October 1999, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(USEPA) awarded the Ramsey-Washington Metro Watershed 
District (RWMWD) first place in the municipal category of 
its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Stormwater Control Excellence Award Program.  The award was for the district’s Tanners Lake 
Water Quality Improvement Project. Barr began working with the RWMWD on the Tanners Lake water 
quality improvements in 1986, with most of the work completed in 1997. 

 
The alum treatment facility at Tanners Lake 

Tanners Lake was suffering from the problems that commonly occur when a lake’s watershed becomes 
urbanized. Barr conducted a year-long diagnostic-feasibility study of the lake and its inflows and 
outflows. The study characterized current lakewater quality and determined the causes of water quality 
problems. It showed that the algae proliferation was caused by the high phosphorus concentrations in the 
upper layers of the lake. Analyses of the lake’s inflows and outflows showed the greatest source of 
phosphorus for the lake was its large northern subwatersheds, which contribute two-thirds of the annual 
load. Two additional subwatersheds contribute approximately 15 percent of the annual phosphorus load. 

Upon completion of the study, the RWMWD directed Barr to implement the award-winning lakewater 
quality improvement plan for Tanners Lake, which was expected to reduce the lake’s annual phosphorus 
load by 71 percent and achieve the district’s long-term goal of an in-lake phosphorus concentration of 15 
to 25 micrograms per liter.  

The improvement plan included construction of an innovative alum-injection facility, construction of 
three stormwater treatment basins, and implementation of a watershed-education program. The alum 
treatment facility receives stormwater runoff from a 1246-acre watershed, treats the water with alum to 
remove phosphorus, and sends it downstream to Tanners Lake with low phosphorus content. 
Approximately 70 percent of the annual flow from the inflow stream is treated by the facility. 

To determine the right amount of alum to use in the treatment system, Barr conducted extensive testing in 
our water-quality laboratory. Tests were conducted at different temperatures to simulate seasonal runoff 
conditions. Phosphorus and aluminum residuals were measured in all tests to make sure the dosing 
selection met the treatment efficiency goal of 90 percent phosphorus removal. Equally important, the 
measurements ensured that the dissolved aluminum concentrations were low enough to protect 
downstream aquatic organisms. 

After 5 years of operation, the treatment system has led to a reduction of in-lake phosphorus from a 
summer average of 55 micrograms per liter to 25 micrograms per liter. 

215793 

Barr Engineering Company 



Ferric Chloride Treatment System Modifications 
Black Dog Water Management Organization • Burnsville, Minnesota 

 

Services provided: 

• Design of modifications 

• Permitting assistance and annual reporting 

• Water quality monitoring 

 

To improve the water quality of Crystal and Keller Lakes in Burnsville, Minnesota, the Black Dog Water 
Management Organization (BDWMO) installed a ferric chloride treatment system. Ferric chloride is used 
to reduce phosphorus levels, which cause nuisance algal growth and impair the recreational use of the 
lakes. When iron is added to the lake waters, it combines with the phosphorus in the lake to form an inert 
chemical precipitate (solid) called a floc, which settles to the lake bottom. 

The system was designed by another firm, but pumping and electrical problems prevented it from 
functioning properly. The BDWMO then hired Barr to design modifications to allow system operation 
throughout the summer.  

Once operational, the lakes experienced odor problems associated with the withdrawal of deep zone 
waters during mid- and late summer. Barr then designed modifications to the system, including a near-
surface inlet to avoid the odor problems. An intake screen and backwash system were also added to 
prevent the system from clogging due to lake weeds that are abundant each summer. 

The iron discharged into Keller Lake dramatically reduced the lake’s phosphorus concentration. Keller 
Lake also experienced a significant reduction in the abundance of curlyleaf pondweed, an exotic, invasive 
aquatic plant. This reduction in lake weeds likely resulted from the high levels of iron in the treated 
Crystal Lake waters pumped into Keller Lake. 

How the system works: Water is 
pumped from Crystal Lake, dosed 
with ferric chloride, and discharged to 
a storm sewer that empties into Keller 
Lake. Phosphorus attaches to the 
ferric chloride, which settles out of the 
water, resulting in removal of 
phosphorus from the lake. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

# 249180 

Barr Engineering Company 



Electrical Engineering Services:
Power Systems  

Power systems 

Power systems primarily consist of the infrastructure necessary to take 
electricity from a utility company’s main feed source and deliver it to a facil-
ity or process at the desired voltage and capacity. Typically, the power will 
enter a facility at the voltage supplied by the utility company. From there, the 
power source will progress through multiple stages of transformation to reach 
the desired voltage levels for facility equipment.  

After transformation, the power will be delivered to medium- and low- 
voltage switchgear through the use of switching schemes developed accord-
ing to the facility operations model. Power is then supplied to motor starters, 
lighting, receptacles, and other auxiliary power systems within the facility.  

Power-distribution capabilities

Barr’s capabilities in power distribution cover virtually any issue from 
the facility-utility source to auxiliary power systems such as lighting distribu-
tion and uninterruptible power systems for distributed control systems and 
critical instrumentation.  

Barr can design the low-voltage power-distribution systems necessary for 
lighting and control systems. We have designed hundreds of installations of 
480-volt motor-control centers and the power-distribution systems that feed 
them. Variable speed drives and motor soft starts are a large part of modern 
process control, and our engineers have vast experience with this type of 
equipment.

Barr also does the design of switchgear installations in medium-voltage 
applications for switching, motor controllers, and transformer feeders. Our 
experts can supply the design necessary for high-voltage power distribution 
within a facility as well as to remote locations at a facility.  Power transfor-
mation and protection at all voltage levels are core competencies of Barr.

With all power systems, the facility-grounding system is very important. 
We do grounding system designs for new facilities or additions to existing 
facilities.  We can also perform power-system studies such as demand, load 
fl ow, short circuit, and relay-coordination studies.

Resolving issues

Some of the issues that arise in power systems design include commu-
nications with the utility company, communications with equipment-supply 
vendors and installation contractors, and the best use of available equipment 
technologies.

Barr has worked with many utility companies to ensure that facility 
requirements are documented and addressed well before construction takes 
place to avoid unwanted surprises.

Transformation is necessary for power  
distribution at the proper voltage levels

Barr has years of experience with medium 
voltage switchgear installations

Barr Engineering Company 
800-632-BARR
www.barr.com

Minnesota
 Minneapolis
 Duluth
 Hibbing

Michigan
 Ann Arbor
Missouri
 Jefferson City
North Dakota
 Bismarck



© Barr Engineering Company

J:\FACTSHTS\ED\Power_systems.indd

Barr will work with equipment-supply vendors to make sure that the dis-
tribution and control equipment will do the job that the process requires. We 
will also work with the installation contractor from beginning to end to make 
sure that there are no problems during the construction phase of the project.

Barr engineers stay up-to-date on current technology through ongoing 
education and constant contact with equipment vendors. This, along with the 
many years of experience that we have in this area, ensures the use of best 
available technology during facility design.

Success stories

Barr’s engineers take the time up front to make sure that we understand 
what you want from a project. We use your standards when desired and give 
suggestions on standards and procedures if you help in that area. Defi ning the 
project and setting the boundaries at the onset of the project helps to elimi-
nate undesired results down the road.

Over the past few years, there have been several instances where fast-
track projects would have been derailed if it were not for Barr’s intervention 
with equipment-supply vendors and installation contractors. Delays in equip-
ment-delivery and contractor schedules often threaten the successful comple-
tion of a project. Barr takes a proactive approach to make sure you get what 
is needed to keep your project on schedule.

Benefi ts of working with Barr 

Having members of Barr’s electrical engineering group working out of 
our Hibbing, Duluth, and Minneapolis offi ces is a benefi t to many of our cus-
tomers in Minnesota, North Dakota, and Wisconsin. We can respond to our 
clients’ needs and concerns before others can plan their trip.

We currently have 14 electrical engineers on staff with over 200 years of 
cumulative experience in electrical and power-distribution-systems engineer-
ing. Our staff works closely together to make sure that our clients’ needs are 
met with an eye on the future.

For more information . . . . 

On the full range of Barr’s electrical engineering services, please call Jim 
Jagunich or Joe Vespa at  1-800-225-1966. 

For more on all of Barr’s services, visit our website at www.barr.com.

VFD and soft starts are an integral part of 
most new motor-control schemes

Barr has designed hundreds of low-
voltage motor-control-center installations







 
 
 
 
 

Community 
Development 

 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 485-3943 

Fax:  (734) 484-5151 
www.ytown.org 

 

 
 
February 17, 2009 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Township Board Members 
 
From: David A. Nicholson, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Re: Site plan extension for West Grove Site Condominium 
 
 
We have received a request from David Sherman representing the development company, 
Grove Road, LLC, wherein Mr. Sherman requests an extension of one year for the 
previously approved preliminary site plan for the West Grove Site Condominium.  As 
you may recall, the Board previously granted an extension of this plan at the meeting of 
March 18, 2008.  
 
We have no objection to the requested extension. I offer the following suggested motion 
for the Board’s consideration: 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
“I move to approve an extension of one year for the previously approved preliminary site 
plan for the proposed West Grove Site Condominium. Such extension is granted subject 
to the original conditions of approval of the preliminary plan as shown on the site plan 
drawings prepared by Atwell-Hicks, Inc. with a revision date of 4-12-05, and as recorded 
in the minutes of the Board meeting of May 17, 2005.” 
 



GROVE ROAD, L.L.C.
1309 Indian Mound East

SUITE 100
BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICHIGAN 48301

PHONE 248.867-2432 FACSIMILE 248.855-9822

Date:  26 January 2009

Mr. David Nicholson, AIPC, Planning Director
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 South Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197

Re:  West Grove Site Condominiums
        
Dear Mr. Nicholson:

Please accept this letter as our request for a one year extension of the Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval for the West Grove Site Condominium development.  Please inform us if any 
additional information is required by your office in order to initiate this request.

Very truly yours,

Grove Road, L.L.C.

 
________________________________________
By:  David F. Sherman, member























































OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Clerk’s Office 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-4700 
Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

www.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
From: Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 
Date: January 9, 2009 
 
Subject: Authorizations & Bids 
 
I am requesting the Board to take action on the following items: 
 
Authorize: 
 
A. The request of Travis McDugald, IS Manager to utilize the eBay auction site 

to dispose of old computer and copier equipment 
 
Accept: 
 
A. The recommendation of Art Serafinski, Recreation Director to award the 

printing bids as follows: 
 

 Park Pass Application Card: White Pine, Ann Arbor (low bidder at 
$324.00.00) 

 
 Annual Park and Boat Stickers: Advance Print, Ann Arbor (low 

bidder at $383.00) 
 

 Daily Park & Boat Passes: Standard Printing, Ypsilanti (low bidder 
at $323.00) 

 
 Senior Newsletter: KEB, Inc., Ypsilanti (low bidder at $276.07.00) 

 
 Discover Ypsilanti Township Magazine: Johnston Lithograph 

(over all low bidder based on the potential combinations we 
normally produce.  We have also worked with them in the past 
and are very pleased with the over all quality of the publication 
and their customer service). 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 

Computer Support 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

 
www.ytown.org 

 

Memorandum 

To:  Township Board Members 

From:  Travis McDugald, IS Manager 

Through: Mike Radzik 

Date:  Feb 9, 2009 

Re:  Old Computer & Copier Equipment Disposal 

I am seeking approval from the Board of Trustees to allow use of a third 
party auction website, such as eBay, to sell the township’s obsolete computer, 
copying and printing equipment.  This is equipment that the township can no 
longer utilize.   

The items that will be sold at public auction include: 

 Approximately 15 computers that are insufficient to run township software 
applications (hard drives will be wiped clean of all data including the 
operating system) 

 Approximately 10 computer monitors (old 15” LCD models) 

 Approximately 8 facsimile machines (old stand-alone models) 

 Approximately 25 copiers and printers (equipment recently replaced and 
some in need of repair) 

The use of eBay will enable us to market the items to a large audience at 
no cost to the buyer.  It will allow the buyer to bid and pay what they feel the 
equipment is worth; most auctions will start at $5.00.  The auction period will last 
for seven days and a media release will be posted in the designated newspapers 
and on the township website to alert the public.  We will not ship any items, and 
all winning bids will be picked up from the Civic Center within 10 business days 
of the auction ending.  Pick-up will be available Monday, Wednesday and Friday 
from 9am to 5pm, and Tuesday and Thursday from 9am to 7pm.  Each winning 
bidder will receive an email which they must bring to the Civic Center to claim 
their equipment.  We will accept cash or check only. 



The auction will be conducted by me and Aaron Beard during regular work 
hours.  The estimated cost to use eBay will be approximately 9% of the sale price 
of each item sold.  Revenue from the auction should cover the cost of the listings 
and advertising, plus the cost of disposing of the unsold equipment. 

Both Mike Radzik and I are available to answer any questions or concerns 
about the auction process and the items to be offered for public sale.  It will take 
about two weeks to prepare for the auction which would take place at the 
beginning of March. 

 

Travis McDugald 
IS Manager, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



 
 
 
 
 

 

Recreation Department 
Community Center 

 
2025 E. Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 

Phone:  (734) 544-3800 
Fax:  (734) 544-3888 

50 & Beyond: (734) 544-3838 
 

www.ytown.org

 
 

Memorandum 
 

TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Art Serafinski, CPRP, CPSI, Director 
 
DATE: February 9, 2009 
 
RE: Board Agenda Item: 2009/10 Printing RFP Recommendations for Park Pass Application 

Cards, Annual Park and Boat Stickers, Daily Park & Boat Passes, Senior Newsletter and 
Discover Ypsilanti Township Magazine  

 
 
A total of thirty two (32) requests for proposals were sent out to printing vendors for printing the Park 
Pass Application Cards, Annual Park and Boat Stickers, Daily Park & Boat Passes, Senior Newsletter 
and Discover Ypsilanti Township Magazine.  A total of fifteen (15) vendors responded to the proposals, 
some of which bid on only a portion of the items.  Tabulation sheets for each item have been included 
with this correspondence. 

 
After careful review of the proposals, it is our recommendation that the bids be awarded as follows: 
 

 Park Pass Application Card: White Pine, Ann Arbor (low bidder at $324.00.00) 
 Annual Park and Boat Stickers: Advance Print, Ann Arbor (low bidder at $383.00) 
 Daily Park & Boat Passes: Standard Printing, Ypsilanti (low bidder at $323.00) 
 Senior Newsletter: KEB, Inc., Ypsilanti (low bidder at $276.07.00) 
 Discover Ypsilanti Township Magazine: Johnston Lithograph (over all low bidder based on the 

potential combinations we normally produce.  We have also worked with them in the past and 
are very pleased with the over all quality of the publication and their customer service). 

 
Funding for these three park items has been budgeted in account #101-751-000-757.775.  Funding for 
the newsletter and the magazine has been budgeted in account 101-751-000-880.000.  If approved, we 
will create a separate purchase order for each vendor in the amounts listed above. 
 
Please place this item on the February 17, 2009 Township Board meeting agenda for review/approval.  I 
will be on hand at the work session and board meeting to answer questions. 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Daily Park and Boat Passes 

 

2009 – 2010 Printing Bid Tabulation Sheet 
 

Page 1 
 
 

 Print 
Tech 
(A2) 

KEB 
Inc. 
(YT) 

QPS 
Printing
Westland

White 
Pine 
(A2) 

Spectrum 
Printers 

Tecumseh

Printwell
Taylor 

Standard 
Printing 

Ypsi 

MSW 
Print 
Ypsi 

Country 
Printing 
Flat Rock 

1. Daily Park Pass; 3,000; Numbered;  
Blue Stock 

         

Numbered 0001 – 3000; regular paper $154.56 -- $225.25 No Bid N/A No Bid $82.00 $130.00 $160.00 
Numbered 0001 – 3000; recycled paper $154.56 $128.78 $225.25  $431.40 $82.00 $130.00 -- 

2. Daily Park Pass; 1,400; Numbered;  
White Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 1400; regular paper $119.00 -- $197.63 No Bid N/A No Bid $50.00 $130.00 $123.00 
Numbered 0001 – 1400; recycled paper $119.00 $70.59 $197.63  $322.38 $50.00 $130.00 -- 

3. Daily Park Pass; 1,800; Numbered; Green 
Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 1800; regular paper $128.21 -- $201.72 No Bid N/A No Bid $54.00 $130.00 $136.00 
Numbered 0001 – 1800; recycled paper $128.21 $28.48 $201.72  $350.00 $54.00 $130.00 -- 

4. Daily Park Pass; 1,500; Numbered;  
Goldenrod Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 1500; regular paper $121.63 -- $196.65 No Bid N/A No Bid $50.00 $130.00 $128.00 
Numbered 0001 – 1500; recycled paper $121.63 $75.72 $196.65  $333.00 $50.00 $130.00 -- 

6. Daily Boat Pass; 2,500; Numbered; Brown 
Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 2500; regular paper $121.63 -- $213.59 No Bid N/A No Bid $72.00 $130.00 $151.00 
Numbered 0001 – 2500; recycled paper $121.63 $101.66 $213.59  $374.00 $72.00 $130.00 -- 

   
Total regular stock: $645.03 No bid $1034.84 -- N/A $308.00 $650.00 $698.00 

   
Total recycled stock: $645.03 $405.23 $1034.84 -- $1810.42 $308.00 $650.00 -- 

  
Number of days to complete & deliver: 5-7  5-7 2-3  7-10  7-10 12 7 

          
Notes: 
      1. Standard Printing: Recommended Vendor – low bid 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Daily Park and Boat Passes 

 

2009 – 2010 Printing Bid Tabulation Sheet 
 

Page 2 
 
 

 Allegra 
Print 
Saline 

Johnston 
Litho 

Romulus 

TGI 
Direct 
Flint 

Tutt & 
Assoc 
Farm. 
Hills 

Advance 
Print  
A2 

Genesis 
Service 

A2 

   

1. Daily Park Pass; 3,000; Numbered;  
Blue Stock 

         

Numbered 0001 – 3000; regular paper $192.40 $119.00 $139.00 $64.00 $87.91 $181.00  
Numbered 0001 – 3000; recycled paper $196.21 $119.00 $139.00 $66.00 $89.25 --  

2. Daily Park Pass; 1,400; Numbered;  
White Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 1400; regular paper $144.45 $107.00 $117.00 $64.00 $69.05 $87.00  
Numbered 0001 – 1400; recycled paper $154.71 $107.00 $117.00 $66.00 $71.25 --  

3. Daily Park Pass; 1,800; Numbered; Green 
Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 1800; regular paper $154.70 $110.00 $126.00 $64.00 $76.53 $110.00  
Numbered 0001 – 1800; recycled paper $163.00 $110.00 $126.00 $66.00 $77.28 --  

4. Daily Park Pass; 1,500; Numbered;  
Goldenrod Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 1500; regular paper $147.00 $104.00 $117.00 $64.00 64.16 $91.00  
Numbered 0001 – 1500; recycled paper $152.65 $104.00 $117.00 $66.00 $66.10 --  

6. Daily Boat Pass; 2,500; Numbered; 
Brown Stock 

  

Numbered 0001 – 2500; regular paper $179.62 $112.00 $136.00 $64.00 $84.71 $151.00  
Numbered 0001 – 2500; recycled paper $184.40 $112.00 $136.00 $66.00 $86.75 --  

   
Total regular stock: $818.17 $552.00 $635.00 $320.00 $382.36 $620.00  
   
Total recycled stock: $850.97 $552.00 $635.00 $330.00 $390.63 --  

  
Number of days to complete & deliver: 5  10 7 6 5 25-30    

          
Notes: 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Annual Park and Boat Stickers & Park Pass Application Cards 

 
2009 – 2010 Printing Bid Tabulation Sheet 

 
Page 1 

 
 Print 

Tech 
(A2) 

KEB 
Inc. 
(YT) 

QPS 
Printing
Westland

White 
Pine 
(A2) 

Spectrum 
Printers 

Tecumseh

Printwell
Taylor 

Standard 
Printing 

Ypsi 

MSW 
Print 
Ypsi 

Country 
Printing 
Flat Rock 

Annual Park and Boat Stickers; Park 
stickers numbered 0001-3200; Boat stickers 
numbered 0001-0600 

         

Total cost including delivery: $737.50 No Bid $995.00 No bid $2,070.00 No bid $722.00 No Bid No bid 
  

Number of days to complete & deliver: 10  ???  10-15  12   
  

Park Pass Application Card   
Type of stock being quoted on: 90# 

index 
No Bid 67# 

vellum 
67# 

vellum 
65# 

Cover 
No Bid 65#  

cover 
67# 

vellum 
67# 

vellum 
   

Total cost including delivery (regular 
stock):

$386.12 $373.72 $324.00 $528.45  $425.00 $336.00 $458.00 

   
Cost including delivery (recycled stock): $386.12 $393.72 $324.00 $528.45  $425.00 No Bid No Bid 
    
Number of days to complete & deliver: 5-7   2-3 5-7 5-7  3 5-7 7 

  
 
Notes: 

 
 
1. White Pine: Recommended vendor for park pass application card – low bid. 
 
 
 
 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Annual Park and Boat Stickers & Park Pass Application Cards 

 
2009 – 2010 Printing Bid Tabulation Sheet 

 
Page 2 

 
 Allegra 

Print 
Saline 

Johnston 
Litho 

Romulus 

TGI 
Direct 
Flint 

Tutt & 
Assoc 
Farm. 
Hills 

Advance 
Print  

A2 

Genesis 
Service 

A2 

   

Annual Park and Boat Stickers; Park 
stickers numbered 0001-3200; Boat stickers 
numbered 0001-0600 

         

Total cost including delivery: $891.00 No Bid No Bid No bid $383.00 $436.00  
  

Number of days to complete & deliver: 10    5-10 7-10    
  

Park Pass Application Card   
Type of stock being quoted on: 67# 

vellum 
No Bid 67# 

vellum 
67# 

vellum 
67# 

vellum 
67# 
vellum 

   

   
Total cost including delivery (regular 

stock):
$529.01 $329.00 $378.00 $456.00 $334.00  

   
Total cost including delivery (recycled 

stock):
$571.78 $329.00 $411.00 $456.00 384.00  

   
Number of days to complete & deliver: 5   5 5 5 7-10    

  
 
Notes: 

1. Advance Print: Recommended vendor for annual park & Boat stickers – low bid. 
 
 



2009 & 2010 Printing Tabulation Sheet for the “Discover Ypsilanti Township” Magazine  
Page #1 

 
 Print 

Tech 
(A2) 

KEB 
Inc. 
(YT) 

QPS 
Printing
Westland

White Pine 
(A2) 

Spectrum 
Printers 

Tecumseh 

Printwell 
Taylor 

Standard 
Printing 

Ypsi 

MSW 
Print 
Ypsi 

         
Option A (one color ink throughout) No Bid No Bid No Bid   See Notes  No Bid 

28 page brochure (cost per 1000) $233.06 $312.40 $205.56 $556.00
32 page brochure (cost per 1000) $227.75 $345.77 $187.84 $620.00
36 page brochure (cost per 1000) $273.06 $391.18 $222.95 $661.00
40 page brochure (cost per 1000) $305.25 $426.55 $239.45 $724.00

Option B (two color ink throughout) No Bid No Bid No Bid     No Bid 
28 page brochure (cost per 1000) $233.06 $358.19 $225.41 $730.00
32 page brochure (cost per 1000) $249.69 $396.74 $206.85 $815.00
36 page brochure (cost per 1000) $284.61 $449.78 $248.70 $875.00
40 page brochure (cost per 1000) $305.25 $489.84 $267.15 $960.00

Option C (four color ink throughout) No Bid No Bid No Bid     No Bid 
28 page brochure (cost per 1000) $344.39 $500.60 $252.09 No Bid
32 page brochure (cost per 1000) $345.56 $552.60 $232.41
36 page brochure (cost per 1000) $402.72 $630.04 $283.84
40 page brochure (cost per 1000) $427.69 $683.85 $302.85
  
Additional cost for color separations (per each) $25.00 -- $15-$30 $10.00
Additional costs for bleeds (per page) -- -- -- --
Additional cost to print half tones $10.00 -- -- --
Cost for providing a four –color cover on gloss $42.22/M-A 

$59.44/M-B 
$27.94/M-C 

$113.00/M $2,919.73 --

Additional cost for 60# offset paper $16.75/M $21.00/M See notes --
Cost for packaging & delivery to post office  $25.00/M $10.00/M $12.00/M $100.00
Number of days to provide proof 1-2 1-2 5 3
Number of days to complete & deliver brochure 8-10 5-7 10 10
Minimum charge for artwork changes $25.00 $50.00/hr $65.00/hr $5.00
Hourly charge for artwork changes $60.00 $50.00/hr $65.00/hr $60.00
Cost to deliver balance of books to Comm. Ctr.  -- -- N/C --
Per page cost for design/layout  $50.00/p $25.00/p $65.00/p $15.00/p
NOTE:  

1. Printwell: Did not fill out the bid sheets making it difficult to understand their bid; Printwell gave individual prices for 60# offset that averaged $22.00 - 
$27.00 per thousand. 



2009 & 2010 Printing Tabulation Sheet for the “Discover Ypsilanti Township” Magazine  
Page #2 

 
 Country 

Printing 
Flat Rock 

Allegra 
Print 
Saline 

Johnston 
Litho 

Romulus 

TGI 
Direct 
Flint 

Tutt & 
Assoc 
Farm. 
Hills 

Advance 
Print  
A2 

Genesis 
Service 

A2 

 

         
Option A (one color ink throughout)  No Bid See 

Notes 
     

28 page brochure (cost per 1000) $414.70 $225.24 $372.00 $512.00 $357.25 $226.28
32 page brochure (cost per 1000) $485.74 $235.81 $423.00 $569.00 $373.83 $239.57
36 page brochure (cost per 1000) $509.65 $243.03 $473.00 $627.00 $425.66 $279.16
40 page brochure (cost per 1000) $588.64 $293.84 $530.00 $688.00 $442.22 $296.27

Option B (two color ink throughout)  No Bid       
28 page brochure (cost per 1000) $493.54 $241.30 $382.00 $535.00 $375.22 $244.47
32 page brochure (cost per 1000) $571.65 $257.84 $432.00 $595.00 $392.05 $260.70
36 page brochure (cost per 1000) $587.36 $282.45 $481.00 $656.00 $449.36 $309.86
40 page brochure (cost per 1000) $696.32 $310.87 $536.00 $688.00 $466.16 $323.06

Option C (four color ink throughout)  No Bid       
28 page brochure (cost per 1000) $880.78 $275.81 $398.00 $671.00 $403.69 $272.50
32 page brochure (cost per 1000) $1104.87 $294.84 $448.00 $750.00 $423.55 $288.50
36 page brochure (cost per 1000) $1129.54 $334.51 $499.00 $826.00 $490.27 $345.90
40 page brochure (cost per 1000) $1361.25 $365.66 $554.00 $908.00 $510.16 $361.73
  
Additional cost for color separations (per each) -- -- $75.00 $10.00 -- --
Additional costs for bleeds (per page) -- -- -- -- -- --
Additional cost to print half tones -- -- -- -- -- --
Cost for providing a four –color cover on gloss -- $1753.00 $2467.00 $28.00/M -- $2951.99
Additional cost for 60# offset paper See 

notes
$17.00-
$25.00

$42.00/M -- 5% up 
charge

11% more

Cost for packaging & delivery to post office  $870.00 -- $555.00 $50.00 -- --
Number of days to provide proof 3 1 5 2 2-3 2-3
Number of days to complete & deliver brochure 12 5 12-15 12 10 7-10
Minimum charge for artwork changes -- $50.00 $55.00 $20.00 $13.75 $45.00
Hourly charge for artwork changes $65.00 -- $55.00 $95.00/hr $55.00/hr $45.00
Cost to deliver balance of books to Comm. Ctr.  -- -- -- $50.00 -- --
Per page cost for design/layout  -- $40.00/p $35.00/p $85.00/p -- $20.75/p
NOTE:  

1. Country Printing: Quoted on 80# Enamel only. 
2. Johnston Litho: Recommended Vendor – low bid. 



  2009 & 2010 Printing Tabulation Sheet for the Monthly “Senior Newsletter” 
Page 1 

 
 Print 

Tech 
(A2) 

KEB 
Inc. 
(YT) 

QPS 
Printing
Westland

White 
Pine 
(A2) 

Spectrum 
Printers 

Tecumseh

Printwell
Taylor 

Standard 
Printing 

Ypsi 

MSW 
Print 
Ypsi 

Country 
Printing 
Flat Rock 

  1      3  
1,200 Copies; 12 Pages      No Bid    

White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $565.31 $261.96 $701.82 $768.00 $851.00 $515.00 $487.00 $576.00 
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $611.42 -- $701.82 $768.00 $989.53 $565.00 $529.00 -- 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $608.17 -- $739.82 $819.00 $964.00 $540.00 $487.00 $611.00 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $608.17 $276.07 $739.82 $819.00 $964.00  $540.00 $529.00 -- 

1,200 Copies; 16 pages      No Bid    
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $648.39 $349.28 $893.40 $728.00 $918.00 $630.00 $597.00 $764.00 
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $705.14 -- $893.40 $728.00 $1119.00 $690.00 $650.00 -- 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $701.14 -- $944.08 $779.00 $1088.00 $665.00 $597.00 $830.00 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $701.14 $368.10 $944.08 $779.00 $1088.00  $665.00 $650.00 -- 

1,500 Copies; 12 Pages      No Bid    
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $610.16 $305.70 $803.16 $802.00 $893.00 $580.00 $572.00 $648.00 
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $665.11 -- $803.16 $802.00 $1047.00 $635.00 $622.00 -- 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $661.23 -- $850.48 $863.00 $1019.00 $615.00 $572.00 $691.00 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $661.23 $323.34 $850.48 $863.00 $1019.00 $615.00 $622.00 -- 

1,500 Copies; 16 pages  No Bid  
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $706.79 $407.60 $1023.42 $768.00 $925.00 $710.00 $697.00 $867.00 
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $775.04 -- $1023.42 $768.00 $1197.00 $780.00 $760.00 -- 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $770.23 -- $1086.52 $829.00 $1159.00 $755.00 $697.00 $912.00 
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $770.23 $431.12 $1086.52 $829.00 $1159.00 $755.00 $760.00 -- 
   
Additional cost to use color ink $40.00 $212.40 $30.00 $46.00 $0.00 $50.00 -- $30.00 
Additional cost to saddle stitch the newsletter $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20.00 -- -- 
Number of days to complete & deliver 5-7 3-4 3-4 6-8 5-7 4 5 7 
   
   
   

Note: 
 
1. KEB Inc. is the recommended Vendor for this project and the low bidder. 
 
 
 
 



  2009 & 2010 Printing Tabulation Sheet for the Monthly “Senior Newsletter” 
Page 2 

 
 Allegra 

Print 
Saline 

Johnston 
Litho 

Romulus

TGI 
Direct 
Flint 

Tutt & 
Assoc 
Farm. 
Hills 

Advance 
Print  

A2 

Genesis 
Service 

A2 

   

     2     
1,200 Copies; 12 Pages  No Bid       

White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $560.78 $533.00 -- $420.00 $536.00  
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $618.16 $533.00 $551.00 $420.00 $586.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $533.04 $559.00 -- $510.00 $572.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $556.96  $559.00 $574.00 $510.00 $622.00  

1,200 Copies; 16 pages  No Bid       
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $730.48 $670.00 -- $552.00 $578.00  
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $806.99 $670.00 $692.00 $552.00 $628.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $693.50 $792.00 -- $672.00 $630.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $725.38  $792.00 $723.00 $672.00 $680.00  

1,500 Copies; 12 Pages  No Bid       
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $685.08 $588.00 -- $525.00 $571.00  
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $750.37 $588.00 $608.00 $525.00 $631.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $650.30 $614.99 -- $552.00 $612.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $676.92 $614.00 $636.00 $552.00 $672.00  

1,500 Copies; 16 pages No Bid   
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $883.39 $744.00 -- $690.00 $631.00  
White paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $964.69 $744.00 $769.00 $690.00 $676.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent  $840.33 $781.00 -- $840.00 $675.00  
Color paper; 60 # offset or equivalent (recycled) $873.05 $781.00 $806.00 $840.00 $735.00  
   
Additional cost to use color ink $35.00 $35.00 -- $25.00 $49.00  
Additional cost to saddle stitch the newsletter -- -- -- --  
Number of days to complete & deliver 5 7 6 5 7-10  
   
   
   

Note: 
 
 












	Committee Reports 
	Assessing
	Building Operations
	14B Court
	Domestic Violence
	Fire Department
	Golf Course
	Ordinance
	Planning
	Sheriff Dept. 
	Public Services
	Residential Services

	Work Session Agenda 
	Fire Dept. Discussion 
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Board Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments 
	Minutes
	02-03-09 Regular Meeting 
	02-03-09 Work Session 

	Supervisor Report
	Clerk Report
	Treasurer Report
	Trustee Report 
	Attorney Report: Clark East Towers Letter of Understanding 
	Unfinished Business
	Proposed Verizon Cell Tower

	New Business
	Resolution No. 2009-3
	Barr Engineering Proposal
	Professional Services Proposal 
	West Grove Site Condo - 1 yr. extension request 
	Township Fraud Policy
	Ann Arbor SPARK Agreements
	Ann Arbor SPARK Agreement
	Ann Arbor SPARK East Agreement

	Millage Resolutions
	Resolution No. 2009-4
	Resolution No. 2009-5
	Resolution No. 2009-6
	Resolution No. 2009-7


	Other Business
	Authorizations and Bids
	Request to use eBay 
	Request to Award Printing Bid

	Statements and Checks



